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1 VEDNESDAY, MARCH 13, 2024

2

3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good nor ni ng,

4 everyone. It's 9:00 am W'I|l go ahead and get

5 started.

6 Executive Director Saladino, can we start
7 with roll call, please.

8 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NO. Yes. (ood
9 norning. Director Sal adino, for the record.

10 W'l start with Chair N xon.

11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Her e.

12 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NO. Board nenber
13 Bezi ck.

14 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Here.

15 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NO. Board Menber
16 Cortez.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Here.

18 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NO. Board nenber
19 G onauer ?
20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Here.
21 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NG Madam Chai r,
22 we do have a quorum
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you.
24 Next itemon the agenda is public coment.
25 Menbers of the general public may nake
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1 conment on nmatters appearing on the agenda, and may
2 bring up matters not appearing on the agenda to the
3 attention of the Board. The Board may discuss the

4 matters not appearing on the agenda, but may not act
5 on themat this tinme. |If the Board desires, the

6 matters may be placed on a future agenda for action.
7 Public comments wll be limted to five

8 m nutes per person at the discretion of the

9 Chai rperson, but will not be restricted according to
10 Vi ewpoi nt.

11 Are there any -- is there any public

12 comment down south? Seeing there's no public

13 conmment down south, is there any public coment up
14 north?

15 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  No public comment up
16 nort h.

17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. M. Bezick,

18 your canera is, like, really blurry. 1'mnot sure
19 if it's you or us, but you're going to have to tell
20 us if there's anybody in the audience or com ng up
21 to the podium
22 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Ckay, will do.
23 Ri ght now there's nobody in the audience.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you, so nuch.
25 Hearing there's no public coment, we'll
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1 nove to the next agenda item agenda item No. 3,
2 Boar d/ executive director announcenents and updates.
3 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADINO. Director
4 Sal adi no, for the record.
5 The financials have been provided to the
6 Board via e-mail. |s there any questions on that?
7 No questions there.
8 And for our updates, for our stats, |I'm
9 going to turn it over to Investigator Swarthout to
10 go over our stats for the |ast quarter.
11 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHQOUT: | nvesti gat or
12 Swarthout. So this March 1, we do our end of year
13 recap in conparison to the previous year.
14 So for licensing from-- the difference
15 bet ween 2022 and 2023. 2022, we did 200 |icenses
16 applied, 161 were approved, 39 were either w thdrawn
17 or deni ed.
18 In 2023, it was a drop. It was 158 that
19 applied, 101 that were approved, and 57 that were
20 ei ther withdrawn or deni ed.
21 So we do see a 21 percent decrease in
22 applications this past year than we did the year
23 before that. Approval, because we had | ess applying
24 al so decreased because of that. W did have a
25 hi gher than the previous year w thdrawn and deni ed.

www.|exitaslegal .com EkE X I TA S 702-476-4500



Board Meeting In re: Private Investigators Licensing Board Meeting

Page 7
1 For Decenber 2023, we had a total of 46
2 applications, 24 approved, 22 wthdrawn or denied.
3 For work cards, for 2022, we had a tota
4 of 12,295 that were received. 10,593 that were nade
5 active, 1,088 that were wi thdrawn, and 614 that were
6 deni ed.
7 For 2023, we had 15,115 in total that
8 applied, 13,036 that are active, 324 that are still
9 provisional, 1,032 that were wi thdrawn, and 723 that
10 wer e deni ed.
11 And then our conparison for just fourth
12 quarter of 2023 versus 2022. 2022, we processed
13 280- -- 2,843 applications were received in 2022
14 during that sane tinme period.
15 In 2023 5,390 were received in that tine
16 period. O that, 4,378 are active, 316 are
17 provi sional, 401 were w thdrawn, and 289 were
18 deni ed.
19 Ri ght now, for that provisional, what's
20 taking the longest is DPS did a change on how
21 fingerprints were submtted to them and how they're
22 recei ved back to us. So that kind of has had sone
23 growi ng pains. So everyone i s working on issues
24 trying to get it squared away.
25 Conpl ai nts and investigations. 1In 2022 we
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received 78. 78 were closed and 19 viol ations were

I ssued out of those 78.

In 2023 we had 79. 75 of them are cl osed,
4 are still open, and 13 resulted in violations for
compani es.

The conmplaints in 2023 fourth quarter that

we received, 18. 15 of themare closed, 3 are still

open.
Unl i censed activity conparison between the

two years. In 2022, we issued 27 unlicensed

activity. In 2023 we issued 30. Then we have the

breakdown on what all those were for.

And then quarter four, just the two
different quarters, 2022 we did issue seven
unlicensed activity in quarter four. This year we
only issued four in that tine.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: | guess a quick
question about (indiscernible).

THE REPORTER: Excuse nme, Madam Chair, can
you speak up? | couldn't hear you very well.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: No probl em

Wondering if you thought the work card
applications increase was due to all the events that
we had towards the end of the year.

I NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  Yes.
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1 So, we had Formula 1 in Novenber, so we
2 did see a spike then. And then all of Decenber, and
3 even into the first part of January and February, we
4 did have a massive spike in applications for the
) Super Bow .
6 So | expect the -- when we report this
7 quarter's at the next one, it will probably still
8 have that higher increase than we normally do for
9 wor k card applications.
10 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  And t he new process
11 for fingerprinting, have we had conversations wth
12 the DPS? |Is that starting to get streamined or how
13 much | onger do they think that sl owdown wll be?
14 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NGO Director
15 Sal adi no, for the record.
16 W' ve been in comunication with DPS. |
17 guess it's regarding their third party that they are
18 noving away from So we do have our list that we're
19 checking against theirs to make sure we get the
20 fingerprints. And | believe there was sone that
21 have to cone back in and get reprinted. There were
22 sonme issues with the fingerprinting conpanies that
23 they did, no fault of ours or fault of anybodys,
24 just DPS with the growing pains. But we figure it
25 shoul d be all fixed in about two weeks.
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1 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Are they noving

2 to another third-party vendor or are they just going

3 to do it in-house?

4 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADINO | think

5 they're noving away, totally away, fromthe

6 third-party.

7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any ot her questions on

8 the report fromthe Board?

9 Hearing no questions, we'll nove to review
10 and approve the transcripts for Decenber's neeting,
11 Decenber 13th and 14th. |It's open for possible
12 action.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
14 Cortez. 1'mgoing to notion to approve the

15 Decenber 13 and 14, 2023 mnutes as witten.

16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a

17 notion. Do we have a second?

18 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, second.

19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion and a
20 second. All in favor say aye.

21 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

22 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Motion passes.

23 Agenda Item No. 5. Counsel Harris, could

24 you pl ease swear in any witnesses that are going to

25 testify today?
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1 DAG HARRI S:  Good norning. For anyone in
2 t he audi ence, including in the north, who is on the
3 agenda or plans to testify for the agenda, please

4 stand and rai se your right hand.

5

6 AUDI ENCE MEMBERS,

7 havi ng been duly sworn,

8 testified as foll ows:

9

10 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, the next agenda
11 itens are consent itens for a potential block vote.
12 | do want to bring up one thing | noticed
13 on Al'l Purpose, No. 6. Their birthdate woul d nmake
14 them Ilike, five-year-olds. So | think they typed
15 in 20 and then they couldn't fit in the rest. So if
16 we coul d just nake sure when we have an opportunity
17 to go through their application we update that.

18 And then | did notice that there was one
19 t hat was contingent on the bl ock vote, that was
20 No. 19.
21 M. Sal adino, why is that -- Executive
22 Director Sal adi no, why is that contingent?
23 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NO
24 M. Canpbell, we haven't received his fingerprints
25 yet. He did submt late, but we were hoping to just
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1 get themin as a contingent upon negative

2 fingerprints.

3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. So we have

4 consent itens for a potential block vote, Item6®6

5 t hrough 18.

6 Does anybody have any issues or questions
7 for those consent itens? Are we good to nove

8

9

forward t hen?

So, I'll entertain a notion.
10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
11 Cortez notioning to approve bl ock vote consent Itens
12 6 through 18.
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion. Do
14 we have a second?
15 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.
16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
17 have a second. All in favor say aye.
18 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Motion passes.
20 So, we have Agenda Item No. 19. Again, it
21 was up for potential block vote. The only reason it
22 did not go through is because -- or wasn't part of
23 the block vote is because it doesn't have
24 fingerprints. | wll entertain a notion for this
25 agenda item
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1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
2 Cortez notioning to approve Item No. 19 for
3 Chri st opher D. Canpbel |l applying for an individual
4 private investigator |icense, subject to clearance
5 of a clear background check with no positive hits.
6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a
7 notion. Do we have a second?
8 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, second.
9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. W have a
10 notion, we have a second. All in favor say aye.
11 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Moti on passes.
13 So, anybody that was a part of the bl ock
14 vote that would want to | eave now, you're nore than
15 wel cone to do so, or you can stay and join us. W
16 can be quite entertaining sometinmes. But understand
17 if you have sonething el se to do.
18 Agenda Item No. 20, private investigator.
19 It's 702 Consulting. Do we have David Logue here?
20 Good norning, Ssir.
21 MR. LOGUE: Morning.
22 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER  Excuse nme, Madam
23 Chai r?
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Yes.
25 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: | have a long-tine
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1 relationship with M. Logue with the police

2 departnent, Metropolitan Police Departnent. We were
3 never on the sane chain of command, nothing |ike

4 that. We didn't work -- he didn't work for nme, |

5 didn't work for him | don't feel like |I have any

6 probl em

7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER. Hi, Davi d.

9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good norning, sir.

10 Tell us alittle bit about yourself and the

11 intentions with the |license.

12 MR LOGUE: | did 29 years, retiring as a
13 lieutenant with Metro. Last ten years was with

14 crimnal intelligence.

15 Since then, |I've worked two years at

16 the -- when | retired in 2013, | worked two years at
17 the Winn as the Director of Security. And | went to
18 Cosnopolitan, where | was vice-president of security
19 and surveillance, and have been so enpl oyed until
20 Now.
21 | did give ny resignation | ast week, and
22 agreed to work as long as April 30th, but | think
23 we' ve kind of conprom sed, nmaybe the second week of
24 April 1'll be out. So -- and that's it for that.
25 And ny intentions are to just work as an
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1 expert wtness and do sonme consulting in the city.

2 That's it.

3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay, sounds good.

4 Any questions for M. Logue?

5 Hearing no questions, |I'll entertain a

6 nmot i on.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
8 Cortez, notioning to approve M. Logue for an

9 i ndi vidual private investigator license, and that it
10 be placed in abeyance so that he may becone the

11 qual i fyi ng agent and nenber, subject to al

12 statutory and regul atory requirenents.

13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ckay. W have a

14 notion. Do we have a second?

15 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, second.

16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a

17 notion, we have a second. Al in favor say aye.

18 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Motion passes.
20 Congratul ati ons, good |luck to you.
21 MR. LOGUE: Thank you.
22 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. This portion of
23 the agenda is for Private Patrol Oficer.
24 Agenda Item No. 21, David Praud.
25 s he in the audience?
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1 MR. PRAUD: Good norning.

2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Good norning, sir.

3 MR. PRAUD: | have a hearing piece in,

4 just in case.

5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Got you. Got you.

6 You' re applying for an individual private

7 patrol man's |icense?

8 MR. PRAUD: Yes, | am

9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Tell us a little bit
10 about yourself and the intentions with the |icense?
11 MR PRAUD: |'msorry?

12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Coul d you tell us a
13 little bit about yourself and the intentions wth
14 the |icense.

15 MR. PRAUD: Well, 1'd like to thank you
16 for having nme in. M nane is David Praud, spelled
17 P-r-a-u-d. It's French, and that's the only French
18 word | know.

19 So | have applied for a security conpany
20 license. |'ve been a resident of the great state of
21 Nevada for al nost 50 years.
22 In that tinme, |'ve seen growh beyond ny
23 wi | dest i magi nation. Mst of the growth has been
24 positive, but with the good al so cones the bad. |
25 see the need for nore well-trained security
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officers. |In fact, | know private security is the

fastest growi ng industry in Nevada right now.
As for nyself, I'ma certified range

instructor, as well as certified wth pistols and

1
2
3
4
5 rifles. | have been in the private security sector
6 for over 20 years.

7 And the nost inportant training that |

8 have had is in Nevada state | aw and federal |aw,

9 which is really inportant.

10 The nost inportant -- | have experts in
11 these fields ready to help ne, join ny group. And

12 as nyself, ready to train ny officers to the highest

13 security and ethical standards. M conpany notto
14 and goal wll be exceptional training, superior

15 protection.

16 Again, | thank you for this opportunity,
17 and | ook forward to working with the PILB and

18 ensuring a safer and better Nevada. Thank you.

19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank vyou.

20 Board, are there any questions for

21 M. Praud?

22 Hearing there are no questions, |l

23 entertain a notion.

24 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezick. |
25 nove that we approve M. Praud for an individual
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1 private patrol man |icense, subject to all statutory
2 and regul atory requirenents.

3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. W have a

4 notion. Do we have a second?

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
6 Cortez. 1'll second the notion.

7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
8 have a second. All in favor say aye.

9 (Al'l present Board nenbers voted aye.)

10 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Moti on passes.

11 Congratul ations, sir. Good | uck.

12 MR. PRAUD: Thank you, very nuch

13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Agenda Item No. 22,
14 Raesheana Sul livan.

15 M5. SULLIVAN. Hello. How are you?

16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good. Good norni ng,
17 m'am Please tell us little bit about yourself and
18 intentions with the |license.

19 M5. SULLIVAN. Yes, ma'am M nane is

20 Raesheana Sullivan. | amcurrently --

21 THE REPORTER: Excuse ne. Can you speak
22 up a little, please?

23 MS. SULLIVAN. [|'msorry.

24 | am 32 years old. |'ve been in the

25 security business since | was 16 working front
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1 office. After that, | noved to various |ocations.
2 And doing security in different job sites.
3 After that | went to corrections. | was a
4 correction officer for two and a half years. And |
5 realized security is sonmething that |'ve al ways
6 wanted to do. And | figured Nevada was nmy next step
7 In that.
8 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. Are there --
9 Board, are there any questions for Ms. Sullivan?
10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer.
11 Good norning, Ms. Sullivan. Your finances
12 are a little bit suspect.
13 MS. SULLI VAN Yes, sir.
14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Can you explain 52
15 total delinquencies?
16 M5. SULLIVAN. Yes, | can. So, during
17 that time in corrections, | was al so supporting two
18 househol ds. M nother was sick. | nmade a | ot of
19 decisions financially. And that 52 delinquencies
20 was ny car loan. | paid off my car. Everything has
21 been corrected. As far as that car loan, it's paid
22 off. It's done.
23 | had -- did not have the adequate
24 financial literacy, but | currently have nentors who
25 are willing to help ne, and |I'mcurrently working
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1 Wi th people to help advocate for ny credit as well.
2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, just to be clear,
3 all of these accounts, the delinquencies in three

4 accounts, they're all taken care of and cl osed?

5 M5. SULLIVAN. The car loan is currently
6 cl osed. However, the other two, one is being

7 di sputed and the other one is in a paynent plan. So
8 everything is literally being taken care of.

9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Once agai n,

11 Ms. Sullivan, what are your intentions with this

12 i cense?

13 M5. SULLIVAN. M intentions are to

14 currently open up a security conpany. | realize

15 security is sonething |I've always been in. |t took
16 nme a while to understand that, but now |I've grown
17 and matured. And again, | have several nentors who
18 are backing ne. And ny intention is to becone one
19 of the best | can. Train ny officers like | was
20 trained. Mentor ny officers |ike |I was nentored.
21 And provide the best services that | can.
22 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. |Is Investigator
23 Di az here?
24 | nvestigator Diaz, could you provide sone
25 additional information on Ms. Sullivan, as -- are
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all these taken care of?

| NVESTI GATOR DI AZ: I nvestigator Diaz, for
the record.

Yes, the three accounts closed and paid
for by collections. Those accounts are now cl osed.
It |ooks like she is in a paynent plan for the
collections and for the high credits. She did
provi de docunentation to show that she is currently
paying it off. W have discussed that, so that part
I S good.

The del i nquenci es, unfortunately, there is
nothing to fix that. The paynents were delinquent.
Eventually they will fall off the credit report, but
as of now there have not been any del i nguencies.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Just for ny -- the
del i nquenci es happened back in 2010 or were they
nore recent?

M5. SULLIVAN. A few of them were recent,
and sone of them were back, yes. Again, it took nme
a mnute to gain financial |iteracy.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: | under st and.

M5. SULLIVAN.  Which | now understand. |
know | need assurances, as far as payroll. |
understand the ins and outs.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.
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1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: By nore recent,
2 what are we tal ki ng about ?
3 M5. SULLIVAN. Recent? The car |oan?
4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: The del i nquenci es.
5 M5. SULLIVAN. Those -- ny car was paid
6 off a year ago, so that's what | nmean by recent.
7 That was the nost recent thing.
8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: All right.
9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any further questions
10 for the Board? Hearing there are no further
11 questions, I'll entertain a notion.
12 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezick.
13 | nmove that Ms. Sullivan be approved for
14 an individual private patrolman |icense, subject to
15 all statutory and regul atory requirenents.
16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a
17 notion. Do we have a second?
18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
19 Cortez. 1'll second that notion.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a
21 noti on, we have a second. Al in favor say aye.
22 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ma'am just -- you
24 know, running a business is very difficult. And I'm
25 glad that you' ve found your way to financi al
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1 literacy and you have sone nentors, because that is
2 inmportant. Just be really, really careful. | think
3 that's why we're hesitant, because you wll be
4 responsi bl e for payroll and other things that we
5 want to nmake sure that we don't have enpl oyees out
6 there that aren't getting paid.
7 M5. SULLIVAN. ['Il nake sure that they
8 get -- I'mworking ny hardest and |'ll continue to
9 wor K har d.
10 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: Al right. Thank you,
11 and good luck to you, nma'am
12 Moti on passes. Thank you and good | uck.
13 M5. SULLI VAN. Thank you, so mnuch.
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  The next agenda item
15 iIs 23. Single Source Security. Do we have -- let's
16 see here. M. Bond, M. Cook, and M. Escaml | a.
17 MR HIELLE: Good norning.
18 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Mor ni ng.
19 MR HIELLE: M nanme is Mark Helle. |'m
20 the CEO for Single Source Security. So I'mjoined
21 t oday by Bob Bond, who is our proposed Qualifying
22 Agent. | have nenbers of ny Board of Directors,
23 Andy Cook and Brandon (i ndiscernible).
24 THE REPORTER. \What was the second nanme?
25 MR. HIELLE: Andy Cook. And over here is
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1 Brandon Pi nder hughes. Sorry, forgot the m ke here.
2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. Tell us a

3 little bit about your conpany and intentions with

4 t he new | i cense.

5 MR, HIELLE: Right. So we are Single

6 Source Security. W are what's known as a nanaged

7 services provider for security services. W serve
8 national custoners. And we do that through locally
9 | i censed security firns.

10 So our intent is really to be able to

11 serve our national custoners in the state here,

12 again, through locally licensed security firns.

13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.

14 MR. HIELLE: And | thought if it would be

15 okay, | canme into the conpany in 2022 as the CEO
16 There's a bit of history, |I think, that canme into
17 the report and background findings. |[If it would be
18 hel pful to the Board, if | can just cover that

19 briefly, if that would be okay? Wuld that be

20 hel pful ?

21 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: | think it woul d,

22 yeah

23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Be very hel pful .
24 MR HJELLE: | have sonme notes here,

25 because it's -- this all predates ny |eadership of
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1 t he conpany. But going back to Decenber of 2019.
2 Qur original founders |earned that even though they
3 are not performng directly the services in the
4 state of Nevada, you have a new |license. They were
5 under the guidance from|egal counsel that they
6 didn't require a |license.
7 Al so, we got the citation that said you
8 needed to be licensed. So that was back in Decenber
9 of 2019. Tried to get in front of the Board in June
10 of 2020. Pandemc. Utimtely canme before this
11 Board in Septenber of 2020. In that hearing, the
12 transcript, our application was deni ed. Because |
13 think the two original founders could not
14 definitively say that we were properly licensed in
15 all the other states in which we operat ed.
16 So that was -- at that point, turning to
17 what we have, nake sure we're properly licensed in
18 all other states across where we operate the
19 busi ness. Apologize. |[If | can read ny notes.
20 W were in regular contact with Kevin
21 Ingram at the tine. He advised around February of
22 *21 that we were -- had not nade enough progress, so
23 we shoul d not come before the Board.
24 And then ultimately, in March of 2021, we
25 received a second citation. So at that point, which
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shoul d not have happened. Again, | wasn't here, but

unaccept abl e. Apol ogize to the Board for that.

But at that point, we ceased and desi sted
operations in the state of Nevada. And we put our
full focus on really making sure we were conpletely
conmplying in all the other states.

So at that point, went to every single
state in which we operated, validated we had a
proper license, or if we needed to get one we got it
i n place.

And then subsequent to that, we actually
hired a direct licensing conpliance specialist for
our conpany, which is led by our in-house |egal
counsel to make sure we are legally conpliant in al
states in which we operate.

So at this point intime, | can tell the
Board that we are fully conpliant in all the states
In which we operate with licensing. So -- which is
extrenely inportant.

Early in ny career | was a | awer, so |
take the law very seriously. So that brings us to
this hearing today.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: | appreciate that
work. | knowit's not easy and it's confusing with

so many different states, and they're different --
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states have different |laws and regulations. So |

appreci ate that.

Board, are there any further questions for
this group?

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer.

Wio is M. Pinderhughes?

MR. PI NDERHUGHES: Me, sir.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Can | speak with
you?

MR. Pl NDERHUGHES: Sure.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Ckay. There's
several civil filings towards you. And the
I nvestigator questioned you about the civil things,
filings, and he stated he was -- he was stating you
were unaware of themand currently contacting
Cunber | and County to resol ve these.

MR. Pl NDERHUGHES: Correct.

MR. GRONAUER. Did you contact Cunberl and
Count y?

MR. PI NDERHUGHES: | did.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Do you have any
docunent ati on?

MR. PINDERHUGHES: | do. | provided it to
t he i nvesti gator.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, |nvestigator Diaz,
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1 is everything cleared on those -- on those civil

2 filings?

3 | NVESTI GATOR DI AZ: I nvestigator Diaz, for

4 the record.

5 Yes, ma'am M. Pinderhughes, he provided

6 docunentation a few weeks ago. He did contact them

7 and provided nmultiple pages to show all of these are

8 cl osed and taken care of.

9 He did get an explanation fromthe courts.
10 It | ooks to be that there was sone kind of dispute
11 bet ween himand his nother and an apartnent conpl ex.
12 Al'l of that is taken care of. The apartnent conpl ex
13 has reached out. They confirmed all paynents are
14 conpleted. The courts confirned all paynents are
15 good. This whole issue is conpletely taken care of.
16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ckay. Awesone, thank
17 you for that.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you. Thank
19 you for doing that due diligence.

20 MR PI NDERHUGHES: | was unaware, but it's
21 resol ved. Thank you.

22 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Now, is this

23 Single Source Security or is it Protos Security?

24 MR. PI NDERHUGHES: Single Source Security,
25 Sir
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1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: D/ b/a Protos?

2 MR. Pl NDERHUGHES: Correct.

3 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Thank you.

4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any ot her questions

5 fromthe Board? Hearing no questions, |'l

6 entertain a notion.

7 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezick.

8 | nove that we approve Single Source

9 Security for a new private patrolman |icense, and
10 Robert WIIliam Bond be approved for an individual
11 private patrol man |icense, and that his individual
12 | icense be placed in abeyance so he may becone a

13 Qual i fyi ng Agent.

14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion. Do
15 we have a second?

16 Do you want to finish the rest?

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: There's additiona
18 menbers to be approved, Board Menber Bezick, so we'd
19 have to finish out that notion.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: The second part.
21 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK: Sorry, | don't have
22 that information in front of ne.
23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Do you want me to
24 make the notion?
25 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: So we'll -- can we
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1 just --
2 DAG HARRI'S: | f Board Menber Bezick could
3 just withdraw his notion, and | just need anot her
4 Board nenber to nmake the new notion.
5 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK: This is Board Menber
6 Bezick. | wthdraw the notion.
7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.
8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer.
9 | make a notion to approve Single Source Security,

10 LLC as applying for a new corporate |icense, Robert

11 W Bond is applying for an individual private patro

12 officer license -- officer license. |f approved, he
13 I's requesting that his individual |icense be placed
14 I n abeyance so he nmay becone the Qualifying Agent.

15 Menbers to be approved are Robert W Bond, Andrew T.
16 Cook, Anthony Hill Escamlla, Mark...

17 MR HIELLE: Helle.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Hjelle, and

19 Brandon Pi nder hughes. This is subject to al

20 statutory and regul atory requirenents.

21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion. Do
22 we have a second?

23 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, second.

24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
25 have a second. All in favor, say aye.
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1 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Motion passes.

3 Thank you for doing all the hard work. W

4 appreci ate you, and good |uck to you.

5 MR. HIELLE: Thank you, very mnuch.

6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Agenda |Item No. 24, SK

7 Security, LLC. Do we have Sidney Kile?

8 MR KILE: Good norning.

9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Tell us a little bit
10 about yourself and the intentions with the |icense,
11 pl ease.

12 MR KILEE M nanme Sidney Kile. 1'm 26
13 years old. | started a security conpany where |'m
14 from in Kansas City, Mssouri, seven years ago. So
15 | was very young. In that tinme frane, we've grown
16 to be the largest private security conpany in

17 Kansas City, with the largest fleet, with enpl oyees
18 of al nost 100.

19 W operate there, and we've done a great
20 job of making the community safer, established

21 really good relationships with the police

22 departnments and operated by the book.

23 In 2019, it was the first tine that | had
24 ever traveled to Las Vegas, and | imediately fell
25 inlove. So April of last year | decided to nove
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1 here, and now I'd like to continue with ny goal of
2 I nproving the communities that touch nmy heart so
3 dearly. And that's why |'m appl ying.
4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Thank you.
5 Board, are there any questions for M. Kile?
6 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer.
7 | nvestigator Swarthout, on the arrests,
8 are they di sm ssed?
9 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  Yes, they are.
10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
11 Cortez.
12 | nvestigator Swarthout, what year was the
13 second arrest in?
14 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  2022.
15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: On or about the sane
16 time as the first? Ws it concurrent?
17 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHQUT:  The second
18 arrest. 2013. That arrest actually doesn't even
19 show up on his fingerprints.
20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you for
21 di scl osi ng.
22 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: 2013 was the DUl ?
23 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  Yes.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Any further questions
25 fromthe Board?
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1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Still thinking.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIl XON: W'l | let you think.

3 MR KILE: [If I may, Counsel, ny -- that

4 DU was when | was 16 years old. | was very naive
5 and young and | |earned very quickly.

6 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  So you're breaking
7 two | aws, drinking and driving underage.

8 MR KILE Yes, sir.

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  The di versi on

10 program we have, there was docunentation of that?
11 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHQUT:  There shoul d be
12 in his file that we had docunmentation for it.

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
15 Cortez.

16 | do have a question regarding the

17 assault. | do see that it was -- the disposition
18 was nolle prosequi. Gve ne a little bit of the

19 hi story of that, what happened.
20 MR KILE: It was an event where | felt
21 like my life was in danger.
22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: |'m a visual kind of
23 a person, so | need you to paint ne the story.
24 MR KILE: Absolutely. It was on the 31st
25 of March in 2022. | was proceeding to ny vehicle.
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1 And as | entered ny vehicle, there was an i ndivi dual
2 inny driver's seat. | had -- | always carry a

3 firearmwith ne while I'"'min Kansas Cty. So | had
4 asked the individual to get out of ny car. The

5 i nteraction becanme very heated in that nonent, so |
6 had taken out my weapon at the ready.

7 As soon as he saw the weapon, he

8 i mredi ately started to conply. Got out of the

9 vehicle and started to wal k away.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: He was in the

11 driver's seat?

12 MR KILE: Correct.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Cot it.

14 MR. KILE: And he had broken the latch to
15 get in.

16 Once -- once he had exited the vehicle and
17 started to wal k away, | turned around to the

18 i ndividual that | was with, which was ny girlfriend
19 at the tinme, and asked her to call the police.
20 As soon as he heard ne say that, he
21 i rmedi ately turned around and then becane -- a
22 situation that he approaching ne. Running at ne
23 directly. W proceed backwards about 25 feet. And
24 when he was two feet away reaching for the firearm!|l
25 chose to shoot him

www.|exitaslegal .com EkE X I TA S 702-476-4500



Board Meeting In re: Private Investigators Licensing Board Meeting

Page 35
1 He survived. It was a very |ong process.
2 And | think the judicial process is ultimtely what
3 led to the dismssal. Once he testified and gave
4 his acti ons.
5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood. Thank
6 you for your transparency.
7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Any further questions
8 for the Board? Hearing there are no further
9 questions, |I'll entertain a notion.
10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
11 Cortez, notioning to approve M. Kile for an
12 i ndi vidual private patrol license, and that it be
13 pl aced i n abeyance so that he becones the Qualifying
14 Agent. Menber to be approved is Sidney P. Kile.
15 Al is subject to statutory and regul atory
16 requirements.
17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a nmotion. Do
18 we have a second?
19 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, second.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
21 have a second. All in favor say aye.
22 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Motion passes.
24 Congratul ati ons, and good |uck to you.
25 MR. KILE: Thank you so, so nuch.
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1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  The show ne state.
2 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: W will nove on to

3 Agenda |Item No. 25, Marvel Tate.

4 Good norning, Ssir.

5 MR TATE: Good norni ng.

6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  The gentleman with

7 you?

8 MR PRICE: |'mone of the managi ng

9 menbers, Kendrick Price.

10 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: Tell us a little bit
11 about yourself, sir, and intentions with the

12 i cense.

13 MR TATE: MW nanme is Marvel Tate. |'m40
14 years ol d.

15 THE REPORTER: Can you speak up, please?
16 MR TATE: Sorry. M nane is Marvel Tate.
17 |'ma father of seven. |[|'ve been doing security

18 since | was 18 years old. [I'm(indiscernible) --

19 THE REPORTER: Can you repeat that?
20 |"mhaving -- can the mke cone a little
21 cl oser?
22 MR TATE: Sorry. M nane is Marvel Tate.
23 |"'m 40 years old. |I'ma father of seven, from
24 Belleville (ph), Illinois. [|'ve been doing security
25 since | was 18 years old. M story is really
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uni que.
When | first started doing this job,
honestly, it was just a job. It was just, you know,

18 years old, it was just sonething that was easy to

1

2

3

4

5 do at the tinme. This job has grown to be nore than
6 just a job. It's grown to be a profession. Sort of
7 like a dream for ne, a passion.

8 So the fact that I'm here where | amfor

9

me is a bigwn where | cone from where | started

10 at as a guard that had, you know, zero understandi ng
11 of how inportant a job was for others, even nyself.
12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  What are the

13 intentions with the |Iicense?

14 MR. TATE: To grow the security conpany,

15 build jobs for others. Trying to keep that sane

16 thing going for nyself to the other guards that are
17 starting off, that they can do just what |I'm doing.
18 That it's possible.

19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Are there any further
20 questions fromthe Board?

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer.
22 Says if you are granted this |icense, you
23 want to put a license in abeyance and becone the

24 Qual i fied Agent.

25 MR TATE: Yes, sir.
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1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Do you know what a
2 Qual i fying Agent requires?

3 MR TATE: Yes.

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Explain to ne.

5 MR TATE: Well, one, they nonitor

6 everything --

7 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: | can't hear you.
8 MR. TATE: They nonitor 99 percent of

9 everything that goes on with the security conpany.
10 As far as the requirenents fromthe PILB, standards
11 and everyt hi ng.

12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  I's there an adm n

13 person in your conpany that would handl e the

14 paperwork, licensing, all that, and he would just be
15 overseeing it, or would be --

16 MR PRICE: | handle all the paperwork. |
17 handl e all the paperwork.

18 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  And could you state

19 your nanme for the record, and your position?
20 MR PRICE: Kendrick Price. | amthe CFO
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.
22 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Wiy aren't you
23 going to be the Qualifying Agent, then?
24 MR PRICE: | amcurrently a couple
25 hundred hours short.
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1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: All right. Wth

2 previ ous work history.

3 MR TATE: Yes, sir.

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You wor ked for

5 mul ti pl e conpanies. And when they were asked about

6 your enploynent, they stated there were several

7 I Ssues.

8 MR TATE. Yes, sir.

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  The npbst conmon
10 conplaints fromthe conpanies were sl eeping on duty;
11 no call, no show, multiple call offs, neaning not
12 showi ng up for work; just calling in sick or
13 what ever; just quit show ng up and no conmuni cati on;
14 unpr of essi onal conduct; violations of conpany
15 policy; hard to contact when on post; uniform
16 I ssues; commt to schedul e issues; very aggressive
17 per client; did not file reports.

18 That background does not sound |like a very
19 good Qualifying Agent for ne.

20 MR TATE: Yes, sir.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  So, what do you

22 have to say about this?

23 MR. TATE: To be honest with you, sir,

24 - -

25 THE REPORTER  Can you --
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1 MR. TATE: | define the person that | am
2 | know who | am | know what | have perfornmed wth
3 these jobs. | been as high as a vice-president of

4 operations for a security conpany. And as |long as

5 oper ati ons nmanager, supervisor, pretty nuch,

6 90 percent of these conpanies |I've been with, | know
7 what | can do. The only difference is nowis, | was
8 given 96 hours a week sone of these jobs. [|'m now
9 doing it for nyself. So | define the person that |
10 am

11 And to be totally honest with you,

12 accountability starts wth the top. Every guard is
13 not perfect. Every organization is not perfect.

14 So, pretty sure that any organi zati on need guards,
15 they're not going to get up here and they're only

16 going to tell one side of the story. So | can only
17 speak for nyself and what | think of mnyself.

18 |"mconfident in nyself. | know what |

19 give. | know ny work ethic. That's why |'m here
20 today. | can't control what's being said. | can
21 only control my own actions. That's exactly what |
22 tell my guards.
23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: | bel i eve past
24 performance doesn't always indicate future
25 performance, okay? | can give you that benefit of
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1 t he doubt. However, to nme, there's so many for so
2 many conpani es and so many different instances, it
3 creates a problemfor ne.
4 MR. TATE: Unh- huh.
5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Especially as a
6 Qual i fying Agent. Because you're responsible for
7 t hat whol e busi ness.
8 That's all, thank you.
9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
10 Cortez.
11 | do have sone followup comments and
12 possi bly questi ons.
13 Wien you indicated that you can only speak
14 for yourself and accountability starts at the top, |
15 didn't really hear you take any kind of
16 accountability regarding a collective opinion on
17 nuner ous, numerous conpani es. Everybody --
18 everybody in this roomcan't be wong if we all
19 agree that you have -- you're sleeping on duty,
20 you're not calling in, not showng, nmultiple calls
21 of f, just quit, not show ng, unprofessional conduct.
22 And all | heard you say is that you can only stick
23 to who you are as a person. | get that. Be who you
24 are.
25 But unfortunately, who you are has

www.|exitaslegal .com EkE X I TA S 702-476-4500



Board Meeting In re: Private Investigators Licensing Board Meeting

Page 42

1 descri bed unpl easant descriptives of who you are as
2 an enployee. And you're asking to be a Qualifying
3 Agent. You would be at the top.

4 So if all I had basically in front of ne
5 was based off a collection of individuals who have
6 pretty much painted you as not an individual who's
7 going to be responsible, or even reliable, is that

8 what you're going to teach everybody behi nd you?

9 Because it starts at the top. You said it starts at
10 the top. And this is a standard of where you're

11 starting. |It's incredibly disappointing.

12 MR. TATE: (Indiscernible.)

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: | don't have any

14 questions at this tinme. | just -- you had your

15 opportunity to speak. | was hoping you were going
16 to cone back strong with sonething, but

17 unfortunately | didn't hear that. | didn't hear

18 t hat .

19 No questions at this tine.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Anything further from
21 the Board? Hearing there's no further questions or
22 comrents, |'ll entertain a notion.
23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is G onauer.
24 Move to deny the appeal of M. Marvel L.
25 Tate, who's applying for an individual private
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1 patrol officer license. |[|f approved, he is
2 requesting that his individual private patrol
3 officer |license be placed in abeyance so he may
4 becone the Qualifying Agent for Sentinel Security
5 Force, LLC, License No. 4016. Subject to statutory
6 and regul atory requirenents.
7 And reason for denial is past history of
8 too many negatives that for a Qualifying Agent, that
9 this doesn't fit the bill.
10 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion. Do
11 we have a second?
12 BOARD MEMBER BEZ| CK:  Bezi ck, second.
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  We have a notion, we
14 have a second. All in favor say aye.
15 (Al'l present Board nenbers voted aye.)
16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So the notion was that
17 you were not approved for the license, and that has
18 been approved.
19 You know, | have to agree with everything
20 everybody said. There's just an issue wth
21 performance and that's the problem
22 So appreciate you applying. You're nore
23 than wel cone to apply again in a year, and hopefully
24 there's been sone change. Thank you.
25 Next agenda itemis Agenda Item No. 26,
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1 Best Crowd Managenent.
2 Sir, please tell us little bit about
3 yoursel f and your intentions of the |icense.
4 MR MOSS: Good norning. |'m Steven Ray
5 Mbss. |'ma very young 56 years old. Oiginally
6 from Louisiana. United States Air Force veteran,
7 Wth -- my background mainly -- had been
8 in law enforcenent. | was -- worked for G ant
9 Parish Sheriff's Ofice in Leesville, Louisiana for
10 13 years. Ten of those, | was crim nal
11 I nvestigator, detective. For the |last year or so |
12 was their evidence custodian and crinme scenes
13 i nvestigator and team | ead on our SRT team our SWAT
14 t eam
15 Went into defense contracting after that
16 for about a decade. Traveling throughout the United
17 States for conpanies Mbius Industries and Threat
18 Tech. Was under a federal contract, in which we
19 were training United States mlitary soldiers that

20 were deploying to Irag and Afghani stan. Again, did

21 that for about a decade, and then branched off into
22 event security and was hired by Best

23 (i ndiscernible) --

24 THE REPORTER:  Best ?

25 MR. MOSS. Best Crowd Managenent. Been
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1 with Best for approximately two years now. My first
2 year with Best | was on their national event team

3 and that's what | was hired as. And was responsible
4 for managi ng and coordi nating the event security at
5 Super Bowl |ast year in Phoenix and 2023 FI SU Wrl d
6 Uni versity Ganes up in Lake Placid, New YorKk.

7 That's what | did for pretty nuch the first year

8 w th Best.

9 During that tinme, | had been contacted

10 t hrough Best nmanagenent that there was an

11 opportunity in Las Vegas to be the general nanager
12 and to handle their branch here. 1t's one of the
13 | argest branches in Best. W have contracts

14 t hroughout the United States with NCAA, NFL, NHL.

15 Do a ot of sporting events.

16 Here, our biggest contract is with M3V

17 event operations. W handle the event security at
18 T-Mobil e Arena, Mchelob Utra, Dol by Live, G and
19 Garden. W do have guest services that we do. And
20 we have some other contracts as well. Enploy a
21 t housand to 1200 staff.
22 And noved, ne and ny fam |y noved here
23 fromLouisiana. |It's been about a year now. W
24 noved here permanently to take the role as general
25 manager .

www.|exitaslegal .com EkE X I TA S 702-476-4500



Board Meeting

In re: Private Investigators Licensing Board Meeting

Page 46

1 That's -- that is ne in a nutshell.

2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Thank you.

3 MR MOSS: You're wel cone.

4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You know, | forgot to
5 ask, did you guys swear in?

6 MR MOSS:. W did, yes.

7 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: | just wanted to nake
8 sure.

9 MR. MOSS: | know there's sone -- probably
10 sone financial -- individual financial, personal

11 financial questions that you all nmay have for ne,

12 which I'll be glad to expl ain.

13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.

14 Board, are there | any questions for --

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
16 Cortez.

17 Go ahead with the explanation. Thank you.
18 MR MOXSS: Well, first and forenost, |et
19 me apol ogi ze. \Wen | received the background check,
20 | had a Chapter 13 bankruptcy right out of the
21 Air Force. As a young airman, | had net and married
22 ny high school sweetheart. W separated, she ran up
23 sonme credit cards on nme, but since | was still in
24 the Air Force, | was held responsible for them
25 And when | got out, at the advice of ny
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1 father, saw an attorney, set up a Chapter 13, paid
2 it off over -- | think | paid $163 for three years
3 and paid it all off. And I think that was in '92.
4 So, it was a good 30, 31 years ago.
5 | honestly thought | had put that in ny
6 background. Was nothing | was trying to not
7 di scl ose. But when | went back so -- | was so
8 certain that | did, I'm like, no, they nade a
9 m stake. | went back and | ooked and it was at the
10 bottom of the page underneath where | had sone ot her
11 j udgnents that | had disclosed and | just sinply
12 mssed it.
13 The nore recent stuff was just
14 unfortunate. It was -- it was after a divorce,
15 unfortunately. | had two vehicles, ny son's and ny
16 ex-wife now It was their vehicles that | let them
17 keep after the divorce. | was actually paying
18 them -- paying her to pay it. And she was not.
19 Those two vehicles went into repossession
20 wi t hout nmy knowl edge. At that tine | was in defense
21 contracting and | was traveling the nation. | was
22 away for weeks at a tine.
23 Unfortunately, the -- it was through
24 (i ndi scernible) Federal Credit Union --
25 THE REPORTER: You said --
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1 MR MOSS: Barksdale. The |oans were

2 t hrough Bar ksdal e Federal Credit Union in Leesville,
3 Loui siana. They sought judgnent agai nst ne.

4 Al'l that paperwork and -- they were served
5 to my nother, ny elderly nother at her house.

6 never saw the paperwork. By the time | saw the

7 paperwork and they were delivered to nme, it was a

8 stack about this high. She had very nicely kept

9 them for me, but didn't informnme that these were
10 com ng in.

11 Unfortunately, there was a judgnent

12 against ne. | spent three years paying all that

13 off. It was probably $20,000 or so | paid off,

14 which | think I concluded all that just a couple

15 years ago.

16 So that's -- that was the two issues that
17 | had.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you

19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Are there any further
20 questions? |If there's no further questions Il
21 entertain a notion.
22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Menber Cortez
23 notioning to approve Best Crowd Managenent a new
24 corporate patrol -- private patrol officer |icense.
25 And that M. Steven R Mss be approved the private
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1 patrol license, and that it be placed in abeyance so
2 he may becone the Qualifying Agent. Corporate
3 officers to also be approved are Rene P. Crosswhite,
4 Mark R Porterfield, and Walter P. Robertson. Al
5 subject to statutory and regul atory requirenents.
6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a
7 notion. Do we have a second?
8 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, second.
9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
10 have a second. All in favor say aye.
11 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Moti on passes.
13 Congratul ations. Good luck to you guys.
14 MR. MOSS: Thank you, so nuch.
15 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Agenda Item No. 27,
16 M. Kelley Murcray. |If the Board indul ges,
17 M. Mircray and | used to work together at Allied
18 Uni versal. He subsequently |eft and has noved on to
19 anot her conpany, as evidence of this. W did not --
20 we were counterparts. | didn't work for him he
21 didn't work for ne. So | feel confortable nmaking
22 any decision on there, but | just wanted to put it
23 on the record that we do know each other. Ckay.
24 M. Mircray, tell us alittle bit about
25 yourself and the intentions with the |icense.
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1 MR. MJRCRAY: Yeah, good norning. M nane
2 Is Kelley Murcray. |'ma senior vice-president for
3 Prosegur Services Goup for the west region, which
4 includes the six states on the left side of the map.
5 Been in the private security industry for
6 25 years. As nentioned, 23 of that was with Allied
7 Uni versal. The last 18 nonths or so were with
8 Prosegur Services G oup, international, global
9 conpany. We currently do not provide services in
10 Nevada, but swi tching our qualified agent to nyself
11 for future business opportunities.
12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you.
13 Any questions for M. Mircray? Hearing
14 there are no questions, |'Il entertain a notion.
15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
16 Cortez notioning to approve M. Kelley W Mircray
17 for a private patrol officer |icense, and that he be
18 pl aced i n abeyance so that he becones the Qualifying
19 Agent license -- wth |license No. 2187, subject to
20 all statutory and regul atory requirenents.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion. Do
22 we have a second?
23 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, second.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
25 have a second. All in favor say aye.
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1 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Motion passes.

3 Congr at ul ati ons.

4 MR. MJURCRAY: Thank you. Take care.

5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good seei ng you.

6 So, the next group starts at 10:30. |

7 think we'll take a -- looks |ike we do have sone

8 folks in the audience. So we'll|l take a brief break
9 and then start the next portion of the agenda itens,
10 whi ch woul d be registration and appeal s.

11 So let's say 10:15?

12 DAG HARRI' S:  Yeah.

13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Thank you. See you
14 back then.

15 (O f record.)

16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  |'s everybody back and
17 ready to go?

18 So, we're here for the second part of the
19 agenda, which is the registration appeals. Wen you
20 hear your nane, please cone up and cone forward.
21 Prior to that, we're going to have Counsel
22 Harris swear everybody in.
23
24
25
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1 AUDI ENCE MEMBERS,
2 havi ng been duly sworn
3 testified as follows:
4
5 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: I f we can have Agenda
6 Item No. 28, Korthary Ratcliffe. GOCkay. W'Il go
7 ahead and trail that agenda item
8 Agenda Item No. 29, Harold Jones. Thank
9 you.
10 | nvestigator Swarthout, would you tell us
11 why we're for M. Jones
12 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was
13 denied for a felony conviction. It was -- the
14 applicant had listed it as Novenber 2011. W have
15 since got the prints back. The arrest was on
16 Sept enber 4th of 2009 out of Chicago, Illinois.
17 It was disclosed, it was a fel ony
18 conviction for possession of cannabis.
19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. So it was
20 di scl osed, just the wong dates were given.
21 I NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  Correct.
22 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Board, are there any
23 questions for M. Jones?
24 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  First of all, this
25 IS G onauer.
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Fi ngerprints come back on hin?

| NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  Yes, they did.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Ckay. And were
good?

| NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  Yeah.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mor ni ng,

M. Jones.

MR. JONES: (Good norning, sir.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: (Ckay. What do you
plan on doing with the work card if you're approved?

MR JONES: |I'mtrying to be a security
guard.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: | can't understand
you.

MR JONES: Trying to be a security guard.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Do you have any
prospects?

MR JONES: The Crca and The Pl aza.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Any further questions
for the Board? Hearing there are no questions, |l
entertain a notion.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
Cortez.

Motion to approve M. Harold Jones, his
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appeal .

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  We have a notion. Do
we have a second?

BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, seconds.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: We have a notion, we
have a second. All in favor say aye.

(Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Moti on passes.

You'll get your card. The office wll
contact you wwth further steps. And | do, you
know -- really, so everybody understands. |
appreci ate that you disclosed your arrest. And not
know ng the date, even though you didn't know the
date, it was incorrect, at |east you disclosed it.
We can find that out later. W do appreciate that,
so thank you, very much, sir.

MR. JONES: Yes, ma'am

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Agenda Item No. 30,
Bri an Jakovi ch.

BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK: M. Jakovich is up
north and he's approaching the podi um

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you.

Good norning, M. Jakovich.

M. Swarthout, could you tell us why we're

here for M. Jakovich?
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1 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  The applicant was
2 denied for a conviction of the illegal use,

3 possessi on of a dangerous weapon March 11, 1981 out
4 of California. M sdeneanor CCWin vehicle. He was
5 sentenced to 36 nonths probation and a fine of $65.
6 He did provide court docunents with his appeal

7 dealing with this case.

8 And then he had another arrest, My 31st,
9 2020 out of California. This one, also, was

10 disclosed. And it was for exhibiting a deadly

11 weapon not a firearmin violation of civil rights
12 wth force or threat, and that case was di sm ssed.
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Board, are

14 t here any questions for M. Jakovich?

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
16 Cortez.

17 M. Jakovich, could you talk to ne about
18 the 2020 incident? | do understand that it was

19 di sm ssed; however, |'d like to hear your story of
20 what occurred.
21 MR JAKOVICH: This is the May 31st, you
22 sai d?
23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: That is correct.
24 2020.
25 MR JAKOVICH: Yes, ma'am
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1 | was living in Oregon, |eaving Crescent
2 City Honme Depot. It was the fifth norning of the
3 BLMriots. | was legally carrying a firearm
4 conceal ed in nmy vehicle.
5 And as | drove past the line of
6 protesters, you know, | felt harassed, just like I'm
7 sure everybody el se here.
8 And it was a warmday and | heard -- | was
9 call ed sone racial nanmes. And | yelled back and
10 that was it. And then a light turned red and |
11 grabbed ny cell phone, snapped two pictures that |
12 still have, and thought nothing of it. Never, ever,
13 ever touched nmy concealed firearm There's no
14 point. | have 100 protesters on a sidewal k. No
15 point, no threat. And | was conceal ed.
16 And the next thing I know, |'m about to
17 cross back into Oregon, in which | have ny CCW for
18 five different states. And next thing |I know, |
19 have two CHPs behind ne com ng Code 3. And | just
20 had a feeling they were there for ne. | pulled into
21 the parking lot, was arrested at gunpoint, charged
22 with brandishing a firearm And PC 4226A,
23 di srupting a protest.
24 | owned a 1981 conviction. | was in a
25 ranch truck, just had a pistol under the seat. |
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1 was 18 years old. | was stupid. D dn't know any

2 better. | was out in the country. But this one was
3 just not fair. Al | did was drive by, they yelled
4 at nme, | yelled sonething back, and next thing |

5 know, | was arrested at gunpoint and it was an

6 18-nmonth nightmare just for running ny nouth and

7 exercising my First Amendnent right.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: (kay. Thank you, so
9 much.

10 | nvestigator Swarthout, could you -- do

11 you have the police report with you?

12 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: Not -- we don't
13 have the police report in that case.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Do you have any

15 information as far as what was the exhibit of the

16 deadl y weapon? Because on here the charge is not a
17 firearm but --

18 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: That's all the

19 prints and all the paperwork that he provided from
20 California. That's all it says, that it was not a
21 firearm just a deadly weapon.
22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: (Ckay. Thank you.
23 MR JAKOVICH: May | add? It was a DA
24 rej ect that the prosecutor never filed charges.
25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: | see that,
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M. Jakovi ch.

My concern was, is that you kept -- you
continuously indicated that you had your registered
firearm however, your charge was exhi bited deadly
weapon not a firearm So |'mwondering, did you
have anything el se on you? D d you have a dagger?
When you said that you yelled out explicits (sic)
back? And you said you took your phone --

MR JAKOVICH: No, ma'am | never touched
my firearm |t was just a conplete fabrication by
three African-Anerican wonen that just nmade this up.
Just because | ran ny nouth at the -- | nade the
m st ake of opening ny nouth at the stoplight as |
went by.

And | was a conplete victimof that,
ma'am with all respect. It was -- 18 nonths of ny
l'ife was on hol d.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: (kay, thank you.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NO.  Madam Chair,
if I could. Director Saladino, for the record.

Being that the situation wth the BLM and
the protesters, they could have charged himw th the
deadly weapon not a firearm because of his vehicle,
bei ng that he was driving through. The protesters

probably nmentioned to CHP that al nost hit them or
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sonething to that effect. That's probably why they

charged it as not a firearm
MR JAKOVICH | was, wth all respect,
charged with PC 422.6(A) terrorist threats and PC

conplete false allegations. Wth all respect.
MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Any further questions
for the Board?

1

2

3

4

5 417(a), brandishing a firearm \Which was al

6

7

8

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber

10 Cortez.

11 | do have one | ast question. \What are

12 your intentions if you were to get this guard card?
13 MR JAKOVICH: It's ny -- | used to have

14 ny work card in California. | was -- | worked for

15 Cal i fornia Departnent of Corrections 30 years. |

16 retired in 2012. | had a long career. And | used
17 to work -- had nmy guard card in California, used to
18 do hi gh-end noonlighting, do high-end celebrity

19 work. So I'd Iike to get back into that. | already
20 have a job offer fromJoe at Triunph Protection to

21 do high-end security for him

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: |s that armed or

23 unar med?

24 MR JAKOVICH It would be arnmed, yes. It
25 woul d be ar nmed.
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1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: |1'mgoing to be
2 honest with you. | do have a little bit of concern.
3 | understand that it was dism ssed. However, you're
4 going to get into a position where you are going to
5 cone face-to-face with individuals of color. That
6 you, being white, may al so, again, say racial
7 comments back to you. M question is, how are you
8 going to --
9 MR. JAKOVICH -- explain that --
10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Hang on one second,
11 pl ease.
12 How are you going to handle that if you
13 get called yet another racial slur and you are in an
14 arnmed position?
15 MR JAKOVICH Wth all respect, ma' am
16 The | ast 15 years of nmy career | was a state parole
17 agent, ran fugitive apprehension team |[|'ve had
18 many African-Americans work for ne. |'ve never had
19 a problem |'mnot prejudiced in any way.
20 That BLM thing was just a terrible
21 I nci dent that happened. Race had nothing to do with
22 it, as far as | was concerned. They called ne an
23 F-ing redneck, and, yes, they got a reaction as |
24 went by, with all respect.
25 |"ve been in many, many |ife-threatening
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1 situations, many officer involved shootings,

2 directly, indirectly. | was CAD rated at the

3 acadeny for 12 years. Taught five different

4 tactical classes. And | would believe | would be an
5 extrene asset to your industry and whatever conpany
6 hired ne.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood. Thank
8 you.

9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any further questions
10 for the Board?

11 MR, JAKOVICH  No na'am

12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Hearing there are no
13 further questions, I'lIl entertain a notion.

14 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezick.

15 | nove that M. Jakovich be granted his
16 wor k card based on full disclosure of information.
17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a nmotion. Do
18 | have a second?

19 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: | have a notion, |
21 have a second. All in favor say aye.
22 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Motion passes.
24 Sir, you wll get your work card. The
25 office wll contact you shortly.
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1 MR. JAKOVI CH. Thank you, very nuch. |

2 appreciate your tine. Thank you, very nuch.

3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you. Good | uck
4 to you.

5 Agenda Item No. 31, Sean Wlson. |Is

6 M. WIlson in here?

7 Good norning, sir.

8 MR WLSON: Good norning.

9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: | nvesti gator

10 Swart hout, could you tell us why we're here for

11 M. WIson?

12 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  So, the applicant
13 was deni ed due to a felony conviction. June 2nd,
14 2008 out of California, second degree burglary and
15 violation of parole. The applicant received three
16 years Wasco State Prison.

17 Decenber 18th, 2005 out of California,

18 felony conviction for grand theft from person;

19 recei ved 16 nont hs prison.
20 Novenber 6, 2016 out of Nevada, DU
21 m sdeneanor .
22 And then August 12th, 2013 out of
23 Cal i fornia, m sdeneanor possession of controll ed
24 subst ance.
25 The applicant was previously denied, and
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this is his second tinme com ng before the Board.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Board, are there any

1

2

3 questions for M. WIson?

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mor ni ng,

5 M. WIson.

6 MR- WLSON: Good norning.

7 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You were deni ed

8 last time for failed to disclosure arrest, correct?
9 MR WLSON: Yes, sir.

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: | appreciate you
11 com ng back and di scl osing everything and doi ng what
12 you' re asked to do.

13 MR WLSON:. Thank you.

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER. W sh nore people
15 woul d do that. Thank you.

16 MR WLSON: You're wel cone.

17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any further questions
18 for the Board? Hearing there's no questions, |'l|

19 entertain a notion.

20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is G onauer.
21 Motion to grant the appeal of Sean W/ son
22 who applied for registration and was deni ed.

23 Reason, that he did all the stuff he was required to
24 do.

25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So we have a noti on.
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1 Do we have a second?
2 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, second.
3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
4 have a second. All in favor say aye.
5 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Congratul ations, sir.
7 Thank you, again, for doing everything
8 you' re supposed to and com ng back. W appreciate
9 it. Good luck to you.
10 The office wll contact you shortly.
11 MR WLSON: Thank you.
12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Agenda Item No. 32,
13 Dani el Mundo.
14 MR MUNDO  Mundo.
15 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Mundo.
16 | nvestigator Swarthout -- good norning to
17 you.
18 | nvestigator Swarthout, why are we here
19 for M. Mindo?
20 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHQUT:  The applicant was
21 deni ed due to felony conviction June 19th, 2013 out
22 of Nevada. Conspiracy to commt robbery. Sentenced
23 to 24 to 60 nonths NDOC
24 March 13th, 2012 out of California. Two
25 counts of robbery, second degree. Sentence on the
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first count was 12 nonths prison, second count was

1

2 36 nonths prison to run concurrent.

3 The applicant also did provide paperwork
4 showi ng that he was no | onger on parol e out of

5 Cal i f orni a.

6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Board, any

7 questions for M. Mindo?

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
9

Cortez.
10 | actually have a question for
11 | nvesti gator Swart hout.
12 When you indicated the paperwork for
13 term nation of parole was received, what date was
14 probation term nated, and was it term nated

15 positively?

16 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: It | ooks Iike
17 fromthe paperwork it was term nated on June 23,
18 2022. And it looks like -- it doesn't say that it
19 was a bad discharge, it looks like it was a nornma

20 di schar ge.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: M. Mindo, did you
22 conplete all of your requirements with parole?

23 MR. MUNDO  Yes, ma' am

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Was it a successfu

25 conpl eti on?
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1 MR MUNDQO  Yes, mm'am
2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Was it?
3 MR. MUNDO Yes, nmm'am
4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you.
5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mor ni ng,
6 M. Mindo. This is Gronauer. You're not on paper
7 now?
8 MR. MUNDO  No, sir.
9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Because it says
10 three years. 2019, 2022, okay.
11 That's all, thank you.
12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Have you put in
13 applications already for enploynent --
14 MR MUNDQO Yes, mm'am
15 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: -- working towards
16 t hat ?
17 M5. SULLIVAN. | actually have a conpany
18 that wants to hire nme for security unarned. |
19 believe the conpany is called Sentinel. So I'm
20 hopi ng to get ny card (indiscernible).
21 THE REPORTER: Get your card?
22 MR. MUNDO  Yes, mm'am
23 THE REPORTER: Thank you.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ckay. Board, if
25 there's no further questions, |I'lI|l entertain a
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1 nmot i on.
2 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is G onauer.
3 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezick.
4 Go ahead, M. G onauer.
5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: (Ckay. o ahead
6 Kat heri ne.
7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
8 Cortez.
9 ["mgoing to notion that we approve
10 M. Mundo his appeal for the registration card based
11 on full disclosure and that he is no |onger actively
12 on parol e.
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a nmotion. Do
14 we have a second?
15 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, second.
16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  We have a notion, we
17 have a second. All in favor say aye.
18 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Motion passes.
20 So you wll be granted your work card.
21 The office wll contact you shortly, okay?
22 MR. MUNDO  Thank you, very nuch.
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good | uck to you.
24 Agenda Item No. 33, Lisa Doggans.
25 M5. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSI NSKI:  Good
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1 nor ni ng.
2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good nor ni ng.
3 Just to verify, you've been sworn in?
4 MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSI NSKI:  Yes.
5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Okay. Investigator
6 Swart hout, why are we here for Ms. Doggans?
7 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHQUT:  The applicant was
8 denied for a felony conviction and for failure to
9 di scl ose.
10 January 26th, 1993 out of Connecti cut,
11 credit card fraud in connection with an Axis device.
12 She was sentenced to serve tine served, six nonths
13 house arrest, three years supervised release. This
14 arrest was by the U S. Secret Service.
15 And then in Decenber 26, 1992 out of
16 California, this arrest wasn't disclosed, it's a
17 felony conviction for grand theft of Axis card, sel
18 with intent to defraud. Convicted to three years
19 probation and 181 days jail, suspended.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ckay. Any questions
21 for Ms. Doggans?
22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board nenber
23 Cortez. Is it Jagodsinski?
24 MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSI NSKI:  Yes.
25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Wy did you fail to
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di scl ose the 1992 conviction?

M5. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSI NSKI: | thought |
put themtogether. Because they were ran concurrent
into one case. And | thought | did disclose the
whol e story as best | could in the information
that -- or lines that were provided. | believe that
| said sonething about it, because they were back to
back, ran concurrent into one case.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: (kay.

I nvestigator Swarthout, is that the -- one
was in Decenber of '92, the other one was January.
Was the case concurrent?

| NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: On the PACER
record, it didn't showif it ran concurrent fromthe
federal courts. They're both simlar charges and
around the same tinme, so that could be why she
t hought she did disclose it, because...

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: (kay. Wre you able
to pay off that fine?

MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSI NSKI:  Yes.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You did? Ckay.

What are your plans with your guard card,
shoul d you be granted one?

MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSI NSKI: Wl l, |

sell real estate in California and Nevada. And ny
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1 grandkids are here, so | started to | ook for

2 part-time gigs to help ne to pay for all of the real
3 estate fees.

4 And | heard about Best. They do Rhino

5 Staging, different things. 1In between selling real
6 estate.

7 So when | heard about Best, | filled out
8 the application, and then they told ne to go get

9 fingerprinted. And | found out there that | was

10 going to need to do a (indiscernible).

11 THE REPORTER: To do a what?

12 M5. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSI NSKI:  To do the
13 whol e appeal process to get a card. | had no idea.
14 And then, 1'm59 this nonth. And | think | m ght
15 have been 25, -6 or sonething back then. So it's
16 kind of -- it's been so long. It's a whole other
17 lifetinmne.

18 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, Investigator

19 Swart hout, just to make sure. She did disclose one
20 portion of it when she was doing her initial
21 application. It was the second one that --
22 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: That is correct.
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  -- may have run
24 concurrently. Okay, got you.
25 M5. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSI NSKI:  They did

www.|exitaslegal .com EkE X I TA S 702-476-4500



Board Meeting In re: Private Investigators Licensing Board Meeting

Page 71
1 run it concurrent, though, from Connecticut. One
2 was in California and the other in Connecticut. And
3 t hey brought it together to send ne back to
4 California to do all the probation and all --
5 everyt hi ng.
6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.
7 Board, any further questions? Hearing
8 there are no further questions, I'll entertain a
9 not i on.
10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: G onauer .
11 | make a notion for -- to approve the
12 appeal of Lisa Doggans Farr Jargodsinski for tinme
13 and di st ance.
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion. Do
15 we have a second?
16 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.
17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
18 have a second. All in favor say aye.
19 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Motion passes.
21 The office will contact you for next
22 st eps.
23 | apol ogi ze for not seeing the |ast
24 portion of your nanme. But, yeah, good luck to you.
25 M5. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSI NSKI:  Thank you.
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1 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You' re wel cone.

2 Agenda |tem No. 34, Antoinette Johnson.

3 Just to confirm you are -- did you get

4 sworn in?

5 M5. JOHNSON:  Yes.

6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.

7 M. Swarthout, why are we here for

8 Ms. Johnson?

9 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was
10 denied for a felony conviction.

11 January 1st, 2003 out of California,

12 fel ony possess, purchase cocai ne base for sale.

13 Sentenced five years prison.

14 January 8th of 2002 out of Nevada, felony
15 conviction for conspiracy to violate Uniform

16 Controll ed Substances Act. Sentenced to 12 to 30

17 nont hs, Nevada State Prison. Credit for 155 days

18 served.

19 Cct ober 5th, 2001 out of California,
20 felony conviction for possess, purchase cocai ne base
21 for sale. Sentenced to five years prison.
22 April 8th, 1989 out of California, felony
23 conviction for transportation, sale controlled
24 substance. 30 days jail, 48 nonths probation.
25 February 3rd, 2011 out of California,
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m sdeneanor DUl .

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. And all of
t hese were discl osed?

| NVESTI GATOR SWARTHQUT:  Yes. She

1
2
3
4
5 di scl osed all of themand |listed a whole bunch of
6 stuff and all the charges out of that were the

7 initial charges, but those were the convicted

8 char ges.

9

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Board, any questions

10 for --

11 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer.
12 Mor ni ng, Ms. Johnson.

13 M5. JOHNSON: Good norni ng.

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Your past history
15 wi th drugs, being involved in drugs, have you

16 conpl eted any drug prograns?

17 MS. JOHNSON:  Yes, | have.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: How | ong ago?

19 MS. JOHNSON: | don't even remenber how
20 long, it's been so long ago. | don't know. It's

21 been a long tine.

22 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: (Ckay. What do you
23 do now?

24 M5. JOHNSON: | do in-hone support service
25 for veterans.

www.|exitaslegal .com EkE X I TA S 702-476-4500



Board Meeting In re: Private Investigators Licensing Board Meeting

Page 74

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: |'m sorry, |

2 didn't hear you.

3 M5. JOHNSON: | n-honme support service for
4 vet er ans.

5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Do you have any

6 nore problens with drugs now?

7 MS. JOHNSON:  No.

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: |' m good.

9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any ot her questions
10 for the Board? Hearing there's no questions, |l

11 entertain a notion.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
13 Cortez.

14 l|"mgoing to notion that we approve

15 Ms. Antoi nette Johnson her appeal for the guard card
16 based on full disclosure and time and di stance.

17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a nmotion. Do
18 we have a second?

19 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
21 have a second. All in favor say aye.
22 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, notion is granted.
24 You w Il get your work card. The office wll
25 contact you with next steps, okay?
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1 M5. JOHNSON: Thank you.
2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you. Good | uck
3 to you.
4 No. 35, Lew s Evans.
5 Pl ease confirm sir, you' ve been sworn in?
6 MR. EVANS: Yes.
7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: M. Swarthout --
8 | nvestigator Swarthout, why are we here for
9 M. Evans?
10 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was
11 denied for a felony weapons conviction and for
12 failure to disclose arrest history.
13 February 23rd, 1995 out of California,
14 felony, willful discharge firearmin grossly
15 negligent manner. And then attenpted grand theft of
16 noney. The applicant was convicted to three years'
17 m sdenmeanor probation with formal felony
18 supervision. The applicant did get the felony
19 charge reduced by PC 17(b) out of California and was
20 granted a 1203.4 dismssal in this case.
21 The applicant was nade provisional because
22 on his original application he did not disclose this
23 arrest history.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Board, any questions
25 for M. Evans?
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1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
2 Cortez.
3 M. Evans, why did you fail to disclose
4 your conviction?
5 MR EVANS: | didn't know | had to,
6 because | was -- this happened 30 years ago. And |
7 had an expungenent and | thought it was renoved.
8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did you fill out the
9 application yoursel f?
10 MR. EVANS: Yes, | did.
11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did you go through
12 every page nice and sl ow?
13 MR EVANS: No, | didn't.
14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: The reason |'m
15 asking you is, there's one page where it has a nice
16 big red stop sign. And right under that it says to
17 list all convictions, regardl ess of the disposition,
18 regardl ess of the California PC code of the
19 di sm ssal .
20 MR EVANS: Right. | didn't...
21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You m ssed t hat
22 whol e page.
23 MR. EVANS: | was not aware of that.
24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You're killing ne.
25 Al'l right. No further questions. Thank
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1 you.
2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any further questions
3 for M. Evans? Hearing there are no further
4 questions, I'll entertain a notion.
5 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezick.
6 | nmove we deny the appeal for M. Evans
7 based on failure to disclose crimnal history.
8 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. W have a
9 notion. Do we have a second?
10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER  Gronauer, second.
11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: We have notion, we a
12 second. Al in favor say aye.
13 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: So, unfortunately, it
15 does not pass.
16 Again, the application is very clear, and
17 it states you have to disclose all issues with | aw
18 enforcenent. So that transparency is inportant.
19 You are able to apply again in a year,
20 just like the first gentleman that canme up.
21 Hopefully you will conme back and see us in that tine
22 frame. Sorry about that, but good luck to you, sir.
23 Agenda Item No. 36, Angelica Gonez. Ckay.
24 M5. GOVEZ: (Good norning.
25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good norning. Have
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1 you been sworn in? Are you under oath?
2 M5. GOMEZ: |'mnot sure.
3
4 ANGELI CA GOVEZ,
5 havi ng been duly sworn
6 testified as foll ows:
7
8 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: | nvesti gat or
9 Swart hout, why are we here for Ms. Gonez?
10 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was
11 denied for failure to disclose.
12 Novenber 5th, 2005 out of California,
13 deal i ng smuggling driver, repeat violation of USC --
14 |*mnot going to finish all that |ong nunber for it,

15 transporti

22
23 fel ony, al

25

16 at one of their stations.

17 Cct ober 6, 2005 out of California,

18 m sdeneanor, two counts of willful cruelty to a

19 child that was di sm ssed.

20 January 6, 2003 out of California, felony,

21 alien snmuggling. Arrest only at the CBP station.

24 of the CBP station.

ng aliens. It was an arrest only by CBP

Novenber 3rd, 2002 out of California,

ien smuggling. It was an arrest only out

Sept enber 21st, 2001 out of California,

www.lexitaslegal.com

&E XITAS 702-476-4500



Board Meeting In re: Private Investigators Licensing Board Meeting

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 79
felony, failure -- or fraud to obtain, (a) perjury.

This it was a warrant arrest that applicant was
asked to provide court docunents for this charge.
M5. GOVEZ: May | just say --
MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Hang on one second.
M5. GOVEZ: Sorry.
MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Sure.
Board, any questions for Ms. Gonez?
BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
Cortez.
| actually have a question for
| nvestigator Swarthout. Wat's CSC?
| NVESTI GATOR SWARTHQUT: It is one of our
| i censees Contenporary Services Corporation. They
paid for her application. She was working for two

conpani es already on their roster when we denied the

card.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: When they paid for
t he application, does that nean -- who filled it
out ?

| NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  She woul d have
filled it out. And for themdoing it, they fill it

out and then they give it to sonebody and they type
It up and submt paper.
BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood. Thank
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1 you.
2 This is Board Menmber Cortez.
3 Ms. Gonez, good norning. Wy did you fai
4 to disclose all of your convictions?
5 M5. GOVEZ: The truth is, | never put it
6 in any application. Since | did housekeeping for a
7 whol e nine years, never asked for anything. Since
8 it was, like, 18 years ago, | never put it anywhere.
9 | did not think to put it. It never crossed ny
10 mnd. | swear it didn't cross ny mnd at all.
11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You filled the
12 application yourself --
13 M5. GOVEZ: | filled the application, yes.
14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: | don't know if you
15 heard ny question earlier with the gentl eman that
16 j ust appeared before you, but there is a page where
17 it has a nice big red stop sign. And says the
18 foll owi ng page, you need to list all of your
19 convi ctions.
20 MS. GOMEZ: The truth is, | don't renmenber
21 seeing that one. Since it was in California, |
22 don't renenber seeing that big stop sign.
23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: It's online and al so
24 t he paper application.
25 M5. GOMEZ: | did have the paper, yes.
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1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: (kay.
2 M5. GOVEZ: Can | just say sonething?
3 Real fast?
4 The two | ast ones --
5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ma' am - -
6 M5. GOVEZ: Those are not mne. | had
7 identity theft a while ago. Those two are not m ne,
8 the | ast ones. The two |ast ones.
9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  That's sonet hi ng t hat
10 you're going to have to clear up wth the court.
11 M5. GOVEZ: |I'mtrying to do that, yes.
12 |"mon that right now, trying to clear that up.
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay, all right.
14 Thank you.
15 Any further questions for the Board?
16 Hearing there's no questions, I'll entertain a
17 not i on.
18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
19 Cortez notioning to uphold the denial based on the
20 nondi scl osure of any conviction.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion. Do
22 we have a second?
23 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, second.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion. W
25 have a second. All in favor say aye.
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1 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, the notion passes.
3 You will not be given your work card because you did
4 not disclose all of your arrest history on your
5 appl i cation.
6 You can cone back and see us in a year,
7 fill out your application again, speak with the
8 office, they'll help you go through that. But
9 they' Il probably ask for docunentation and
10 paperwork. And as |ong as you disclose, you
11 shouldn't -- you know, |I'mnot telling you you'l
12 get through, but disclose everything, okay?
13 M5. GOMVEZ: kay. Southern California --
14 how do | do that over here?
15 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You can call the
16 office. They'll help you.
17 M. GOVEZ: Pl LB?
18 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Yes.
19 M5. GOMVEZ: Thank you.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you.
21 M5. GOMVEZ: Thank you.
22 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Agenda Item No. 37,
23 Robert Esqui vel postponed. W wll see himlater.
24 Agenda Item No. 38 Ant hony Hut chi son.
25 Good norning, sir.
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1 MR. HUTCH SON:  Mor ni ng.

2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: | nvesti gat or

3 Swart hout, why are we here for M. Hutchison?

4 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  The applicant was
5 denied for a felony conviction and for -- and

6 i1l egal use or possession of a dangerous weapon.

7 On Decenber 2nd, 2021 out of Nevada,

8 m sdeneanor carry, conceal weapon w thout a permt,
9 di sorderly conduct. @iilty on both counts.

10 January 17th, 2021 out of Nevada,

11 m sdenmeanor carry conceal ed weapon without a permt.
12 Quilty, tinme served.

13 August 11, 2016 out of Nevada, fel ony,

14 attenpted enbezzl enent. Sentenced to 12 to 32

15 nmonths NDOC to run concurrent with the other case.
16 July 17th, 2014, out of Nevada, felony,

17 attenpted burglary, sentenced to 24 to 60 nonths

18 NDOC and four years probation.

19 February 25th, 2013 out of Nevada, felony,
20 possess nmarijuana, one ounce. But it is 50 pounds
21 of marijuana. Third offense DU, possession
22 controll ed substance. That charge was di sm ssed.
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. And just to
24 make sure | understand this -- none of this was
25 di scl osed?
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1 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: They all were
2 di scl osed.
3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  They were di scl osed.
4 Gkay, Thank you.
5 Board, are there any questions?
6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
7 Cortez.
8 M. Hut chi son.
9 MR, HUTCH SON: Yes, ma'am
10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Wy do we have so
11 much contact with | aw enforcenent?
12 MR HUTCH SON: Just have a -- bad |uck
13 wth | aw enforcenent.
14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: |'m sorry, one nore
15 tine?
16 THE WTNESS: Bad luck with | aw
17 enforcenment. It's not like -- the tine that | did
18 get caught, that was -- wasn't mne, like, so ny
19 | awyer got the case -- | thought the charges was
20 di sm ssed. Even though | did disclose them ny case
21 was dismssed. | just --
22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Are you talking
23 about the 2023 case that was dism ssed?
24 MR, HUTCHI SON.  DUI .
25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: No, that would be
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for the marijuana charge.

MR, HUTCH SON:  Yes.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: kay. Then let's
di scuss the 2021, both in January, and then -- wait,
there mght be a typo in the years. No, it actually
could be -- yeah.

Oficer Swarthout -- or Investigator
Swarthout. Nos. 1 and 2, |'ve got Decenber of 2021
and then |'ve got January of 2021.

| NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: They -- on the
fingerprints they're listed as two separate cases.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Got it. So let's
di scuss that. The 2021. Wy is there so nuch | aw
enf orcenent contact?

That one you were guilty on both counts,
so it's not that it was a m staken identity or
sonebody el se's fault. These, you have been found
guilty of both counts.

MR. HUTCH SON:  Yes, ma' am

My reason is because | wasn't taking ny
life as serious as | should have been now because |
know how it can affect ne, like, now, basically
trying to get ajob. It's kind of hard for ne to
get a job. | do have offers fromAllied Universal,

and | do have the contact of the site supervisor if
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you would like to contact them

But I'malso a personal chef. | just
bought nme a food truck |last week. So |'ma personal
chef and | cater. And have two kids. So | made
sone m st akes back when | was younger. | understand
that's not too far --

THE REPORTER: Excuse nme. | understand
that? And then what did you say?

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: You have to sl ow down

because she's taking -- she's a court reporter.
MR HUTCH SON:  Sorry, sorry.
THE WTNESS: | was just saying that |

made sonme m stakes when | was younger and
understand m stakes that |'ve made and the choice
that caused nme to be where | am at.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer.

kay. February 25th, 2023. Interaction
with law enforcenent. Possession, 50 pounds of
marijuana, DU third offense, possession of
Schedul e 1 and 2 control | ed substance. What was
t hat about ?

MR. HUTCHI SON: | didn't have 50 pounds of
marijuana, sir. | only had an eighth of weed, which

is like 3.5 grans. And | had ny nedical card when
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they searched ne. And | still have it on ne as we

speak. They didn't ask for that, but nmy |awer had
presented that when we went to court.
BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  \What happened to

MR HUTCH SON: The what ?
BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: The DU . Driving
under the influence.

1
2
3
4
5 t he DU ?
6
7
8
9 MR. HUTCHI SON: Is that from 20217

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Third of f ense.
11 2023.
12 MR. HUTCH SON: That was what -- that was

13 what they tried to call it, third of fense, because

14 they seen | had marijuana in the car but | was not
15 snmoking. | was snoking a cigarette. A different
16 of ficer said he seen ne spark up sonethi ng but

17 didn't know what it was. So then that's when they
18 made the -- made ne pull over. But | told theml

19 had an eighth in ny car. And then they could have
20 searched ne, they pulled ne out and they tried to

21 conclude it as a third DU because | already had two

22 DU s prior. That's one that had said sonething

23 about the 50 pounds of weed when it was only an
24 eighth, and I had ny nedical card on nme, present.
25 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: (Ckay. You just
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1 stated that you made -- you were younger and you

2 made sonme m stakes. This is nine years |later and

3 you're still making m stakes, getting involved wth
4 | aw enf or cenent .

5 MR. HUTCHI SON. | just got a random pul

6 over and they assunmed because | sparked a cigarette,
7 t hey assunmed that | was sparking sonething el se.

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: A random pul

9 over?

10 MR. HUTCH SON. Yeah. | was driving down
11 the strip when | was snoking -- | sparked up a

12 cigarette, and then they pulled ne over

13 because officer --

14 THE REPORTER: Because the officer pulled
15 me over?

16 MR HUTCH SON:  Huh?

17 THE REPORTER: You're speaking very

18 quickly and I can't keep up. You said the officer
19 pul |l ed nme over.
20 MR, HUTCHI SON: Yeah, but it was two
21 different officers. One officer said that seen ne
22 spark sonething but didn't know what it was. So
23 another officer -- he called that officer, and that
24 of ficer pulled me over right across the street from
25 the Venetian. | was outside for about 45 mnutes to
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1 an hour while they -- while | let themsearch ny

2 car. And | told themthat | had weed in ny gl ove

3 conpartnment, which was only an ei ghth.

4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: I nvesti gat or

5 Swart hout, how do they -- does it nention the 50

6 pounds? | nean, how did that get to the 50 pounds?
7 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: That is the

8 charge that they listed. It could be because of

9 that, or it could be they had concentrated cannabi s,
10 the THC on. Al it says is possession of marijuana,
11 | ess than 50 pounds.

12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ch, | ess than 50

13 pounds. Ckay.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
15 Cortez. To be quite honest with you, the DA denied
16 t he case back in 2023, but here's ny bigger concern.
17 So in 2024 you caught yourself a case.

18 And then you got yourself on probation for four

19 years. But then in 2016, you al so caught an
20 attenpted enbezzl enment charge to run concurrently
21 with the 2014. Again, that would end your probation
22 in 2018.
23 So | would Iike to believe that you
24 | ear ned sone kind of |esson between 2014 and 2018.
25 But then in 2021 you got two charges. Carrying
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1 conceal ed weapon without a permt. Not once, but
2 twice. So I'mhaving a little hard tinme
3 under standi ng that you were young and then, you
4 know, now you | ear ned.
5 But et nme back up. There was also a 2020
6 DU offense. M problemis, that |I'mnot sure
7 you're quite understandi ng that you need to have
8 zero contact with |aw enforcenent before you're
9 asking for a guard card.
10 There are certain standards that you are
11 held to when you hold that guard card. And when |'m
12 | ooki ng at your record, you consistently have | aw
13 enforcenent contact. That's a problemfor ne.
14 No further comment.
15 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any further questions
16 fromthe Board? Hearing there are no further
17 questions, I'll entertain a notion.
18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board nenber
19 Cortez.
20 |"mgoing to notion that we uphold the
21 deni al based on tinme and di stance. Like |
22 i ndi cated, we have | aw enforcenent contact as early
23 as 2021. | need to establish a little nore tine of
24 consi stency with no | aw enforcenent contact.
25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: So we have a notion.
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1 Do we have a second?
2 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.
3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: So we have a noti on,
4 we have a second. All in favor say aye.
5 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Unfortunately, at this
7 poi nt you won't get your guard license. | do
8 appreci ate that you disclosed everything. That's
9 what has to happen. But unfortunately, the Board
10 feels you need to have a little nore tine and
11 di stance between your last interaction or contact
12 with | aw enforcenent and when you're in front of the
13 Board. So you're nore than wel come to cone and see
14 us again in a year. Sane with the first gentl eman.
15 He was able to cone back and get his |icense. So
16 pl ease work with the office. They' Il help support
17 you in any way they can for your next application.
18 MR. HUTCH SON. Thank you, so nuch.
19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you. Good | uck
20 to you.
21 Agenda Item No. 39, Josiah Smth.
22 Good norning. Investigator Swarthout,
23 could you tell us why we're here for M. Smth?
24 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHQUT:  The applicant was
25 denied for a felony conviction.
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1 W have an August 28, 2017 out of Hawaii
2 m sdenmeanor, pronote a detrinental drug, third
3 degree prohibited acts. That case was di sm ssed.
4 That one was not discl osed.
5 June 20t h, 2013 out of Hawaii .
6 M sdeneanor, theft, fourth degree, shoplifting.
7 Sentenced to three days. That arrest was discl osed.
8 March 7th, 2012 out of Hawaii. Fel ony,
9 theft, forgery of card; theft, second degree.
10 Sentence, five years confinenent for both charges.
11 And they ran concurrently. That one was al so
12 di scl osed.
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Board, any
14 questions for M. Smth?
15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
16 Cortez.
17 M. Smith, why did you fail to disclose
18 t he 2017 charge?
19 MR SMTH | honestly forgot about it.
20 |*mnot going to lie. That was ny fault.
21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did you forget that
22 you had | aw enforcenent contact.
23 MR SMTH Yes. | know. | just -- as he
24 read it, | renmenbered it. | thought | disclosed
25 everything on there. M main ones were the
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felonies, that's why | put those down, because

that's -- that was ny m st ake.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Were you
successfully term nated off parole?

MR. SM TH: Yes, correct.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Because | do see
that you had a coupl e violations.

MR SMTH. Yes, | did. | conpleted
parol e June 16, 2020.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: No contact with |aw
enf orcenent since?

MR SM TH. No.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: What are your plans
to do with the guard card if you' re approved.

MR SMTH. | would like to do security
with it. | have three students that run private
security. And | would like to do that.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any further questions
fromthe Board? Hearing there are no further
guestions, I'll entertain a notion.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is G onauer.

Deny the appeal -- notion is to deny the
appeal for Josiah Smth for failure to fully
di scl ose.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  We have a notion. Do
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1 we have a second?
2 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, second.
3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: We have a notion, we
4 have a second. All in favor say aye.
5 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Motion passes.
7 So, unfortunately, because you didn't
8 di scl ose. W appreciate the other stuff that you
9 di scl ose, but you have to get it all. You're nore
10 t han wel cone to cone back and see us --
11 MR SMTH 1'll see you in a year.
12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Awesone. W | ook
13 forward to seeing you.
14 MR SM TH. Thank you.
15 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Wat tinme was
16 t he second group supposed to cone in, 11:30? And
17 that -- that's what nunber?
18 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NO. That's goi ng
19 to be 40.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Let's go back to
21 Agenda Item No. 28 we trailed, Ms. Ratcliffe.
22 Good norning, ma'am
23 M5. RATCLI FFE: Good nor ni ng.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Have you been sworn
25 I n?
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1 MS. RATCLI FFE: No, | have not.
2
3 KORTHARY RATCLI FFE,
4 havi ng been duly sworn
5 testified as foll ows:
6
7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: I nvesti gat or
8 Swart hout, why are we here for Ms. Ratcliffe?
9 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was
10 denied for a felony conviction.
11 May 20t h, 1996 out of M nnesota, felony,
12 theft, $500.
13 Convi cted out of M nnesota, August 6th,
14 1992, felony financial charge, credit card fraud.
15 She was sentenced to six nonths to one year -- one
16 year, one day in prison, suspended, probation three
17 years.
18 Cct ober 20th of 1987 out of M nnesot a.
19 O fering forged check. 60 days jail, suspended, two
20 years probati on.
21 March 16th, 2004, gross m sdeneanor out of
22 M nnesota for theft.
23 January 20th, 2004 out of M nnesot a.
24 M sdeneanor false information to police. She was
25 gi ven probation for that one.
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1 Novenber 9th, 1996 out of M nnesota.
2 Di sorderly conduct, m sdeneanor, convi cted.
3 January 1st, 1986, out of IIllinois,
4 m sdenmeanor possession of marijuana, two days jail.
5 Decenber 3rd, 1985, out of Illinois,
6 m sdemeanor prosecution. That charge was di sm ssed.
7 Cct ober 28th, 1984 out of Illinois,
8 m sdeneanor shoplifting. Convicted, tw days jail.
9 August 19th, 1984 out of Illinois,
10 m sdeneanor retail theft, two days jail.
11 The applicant did disclose all of her
12 arrests on her application and was not nade
13 provi si onal .
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Fantastic. Board, any
15 gquestions for Ms. Ratcliffe?
16 Hearing there are no questions, |l
17 entertain a notion.
18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
19 Cortez notioning to approve Ms. Ratcliffe's appeal
20 based on full disclosure of convictions.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion. Do
22 we have a second?
23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
25 have a second. All in favor say aye.
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1 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Motion passes.
3 You w Il get your work card. The office
4 w Il contact you wth next steps, okay?
5 M5. RATCLI FFE: Okay. Thank you.
6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You're wel come. Good
7 luck to you.
8 So, we're now in the second half, Agenda
9 Item No. 40, Aaron Ml er.
10 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NO. Madam Chai r,
11 Director Sal adino, for the record.
12 This next group was told to be here at
13 11: 30.
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Sorry. W'Ill go ahead
15 and take a short recess and then cone back -- take
16 t hose guys?
17 All right, let's clear the room Let's
18 see. Let's go around. Sir, what nunber are you?
19 Agenda |tem No. ?
20 MR SMTH  Me?
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Yes.
22 MR SMTH  73.
23 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: Sir, what agenda item
24 are you?
25 M5. RATCLIFFE: Not sure. 53.
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1 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  53?

2 | NVESTI GATOR BLACKMORE: What's your nane?
3 MR, QUI NTANA: Henry Quintana.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: 51.

5 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  Sir, what agenda item
6 are you?

7 MR MLLER Agenda, not sure, but it's

8 Ryan Seegmi |l er.

9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ryan?

10 | NVESTI GATOR BLACKMORE: Ryan Seegm | | er?
11 MR SEEGM LLER: Seegm |l er.

12 I NVESTI GATOR BLACKMORE:  49.

13 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  Sir, what agenda item
14 are you?

15 MR WLLIAMS: | don't know what that is,
16 but ny nane is Dejonte WIIians.

17 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  All right. So we wll
18 go in order. That nmeans Dejonte WIIians.

19 Sir, if you could cone up. Sir, if you
20 wll -- is there anybody in the roomthat has not
21 been sworn in yet?
22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Have you been sworn
23 in, sir? Because | don't recall you standing up
24 l ast tine.
25 UNI DENTI FI ED AUDI ENCE MEMBER: Yeah, | was

Page 98

www.lexitaslegal.com

EkE XITAS 702-476-4500



Board Meeting In re: Private Investigators Licensing Board Meeting

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 99
here in the norning. Do | need to stand every tine?

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: No, not every tine,
but | don't recall seeing you.
UNI DENTI FI ED AUDI ENCE MEMBER: |'I| stand

agai n.

AUDI ENCE MEMBERS,
havi ng been duly sworn

testified as foll ows:

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you, sir.

So, Investigator Swarthout, why are we
here for M. WIlians?

| NVESTI GATOR SWARTHQUT:  The applicant was
denied for a conviction of a felony, illegal use of
possessi on of weapon and failure to disclose arrest
hi story.

August 27, 2006 out of California.
Fel ony, assault with a stun gun taser. Sentenced to
two years' prison

March 31st, 2016 out of California.
M sdeneanor, obstructing, et cetera, public officer.
That case -- that charge was di sm ssed.

Decenber 10th, 2004 out of California.

Fel ony, force with a deadly weapon not a firearm
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The applicant was a mnor for that one.
May 8th, 2003 out of California. Battery
on school enployee, threat, crimnal intent to

terrorize, obstruct public officer. Also a mnor on

July 18th, 1997 out of California.
Fel ony, burglary. The applicant was al so a m nor
for that case.

1
2
3
4
5 t hat one.
6
7
8
9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. But just to be

10 clear, we didn't disclose any of the arrest history.
11 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: He did not

12 di scl ose any of it.

13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Board, are there any
14 questions for M. WIlIlians?

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
16 Cortez.

17 M. WIllianms, why did we fail to disclose
18 any conviction?

19 MR WLLIAMS: M reasoning why | didn't
20 di scl ose that was because |'ve been doing security
21 work for the last four, alnost five years in

22 California. And in California, they say anything

23 | onger than seven years you don't have to put --
24 check the box that you have a felony.
25 So since | already previously had a guard
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1 card, private officer card, I went ahead and
2 followed suit and did the sane thing here. Because
3 this is ny first time noving to Las Vegas. Mving
4 with ny conpany. So this happening just kind of
5 shockwave. | was hoping | could get ny card back so
6 | can get back to work.
7 But | apol ogi ze for -- you know, | don't
8 know the laws in Nevada. |'mreally sorry for it.
9 | don't want to lie to you guys about anything. But
10 | was just follow ng what | thought was right.
11 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  Did you fill out your
12 application, sir?
13 MR. WLLIAMS: Yes, ma'am
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Because in the
15 application it does state in there there's a --
16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: There's a nice, big
17 stop sign.
18 MR WLLIAMS: | seen -- | seen the -- on
19 t he paperwork. But like | said, | was going off of
20 how California is, you know.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  This is Nevada. So
22 that was a difference. That's why we put it on
23 there, the big stop sign so you nmake sure you read
24 this. Understand, any arrest, any convictions, any
25 anything, all right? So, it's not California. It's
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1 alittle bit different. So that's why we try to

2 make it as obvious as possible for you to stop and

3 make sure you read.

4 Any further questions for the Board?

5 Hearing there are no further questions, |l

6 entertain a notion.

7 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezi ck.

8 | nmove we uphold denial for M. WIIlians

9 based on nondi scl osure of crimnal history.

10 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. W have a

11 notion, do we have a second?

12 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a

14 notion, we have a second. Al in favor say aye.

15 (Al'l present Board nenbers voted aye.)

16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: So unfortunately, you
17 won't get your guard card. Again, it's very clear
18 in the application. W do everything that we can to
19 make sure that everybody understands the process.
20 MR WLLIAMS: Sorry, you guys. But, you
21 know, due to this happening -- | noved out here with
22 ny conpany. And the job that's available to ne is
23 not enough for ne to make it. So I'mkind of -- I'm
24 in a hole where | mght be |losing everything that |
25 wor ked so hard for, you know. And I'm-- really
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1 apol ogi ze that the application, | didn't see it on
2 there. But | really don't have really no other
3 choice. |'mpretty nmuch | osing everything. |
4 wor ked hard.
5 Li ke, | understand that | have a juvenile
6 record and, you know, a past life, but | turned it
7 around. You know, |'ve been wal ki ng strai ght path.
8 | even filed paperwork with the governor of
9 California to be pardoned so that | can go farther
10 t han ny career.
11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  We under stand that.
12 And we do appreciate what you're going through,
13 right? | do get that.
14 The unfortunate part is, we have to remain
15 consistent with what we do. If we do it for you,
16 then we have to do it for the next person and next
17 person and then we've kind of |ost control of the
18 standard, right?
19 So ny suggestion is, there's a |ot of
20 opportunity out here in Las Vegas beyond security.
21 MR WLLIAMS: ['mgoing to be honest with
22 you. |'ve been trying to get -- | just been fired
23 fromtwo jobs because the enployer felt like |
24 wasn't being good fit. But | was doing a great |ob.
25 And I"'mnot -- I'mreally not steady about it, and
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1 really feel like -- I'"mjust hurting because |'m
2 losing nmy life, you know And | -- | don't have no
3 famly out here.
4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: | can appreciate that,
5 | really can. This is a tough town. Just --
6 seriously, you will make it. You' ve done great
7 t hings with what you' ve done so far. So keep your
8 head up and don't let this define you, okay?
9 MR. WLLIAMS: Trying.
10 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: | believe that you
11 can.
12 But definitely, there's opportunity out
13 here. Please conme see us in a year and discl ose
14 everything and we wll, you know, be able to nake a
15 di fferent decision based off of your application

16 t hen, okay? Work with this team They will help

17 you.

18 MR WLLIAMS: |I'mjust going to -- | do
19 nmy best.

20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Look forward to seeing
21 you.

22 MR WLLIAMS: Thank you.

23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good luck to you, sir.
24 Agenda Item No. 49, Ryan Seegm || er.

25 Good norning, sir.
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1 MR. SEEGM LLER:  Mbrni ng.

2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: I nvestigator Diaz, can
3 you tell us why we're here for M. Seegm|ller?

4 | NVESTI GATOR DI AZ: The applicant was

5 deni ed for a m sdeneanor possession of drug not for
6 I nterstate conmerce conviction out of Las Vegas,

7 Nevada in 2011. The applicant was sentenced to 90
8 days in jail.

9 He al so has a 2020 m sdeneanor for

10 possession of a controlled substance and possessi on
11 of dangerous weapon. This arrest was di sm ssed and
12 di scl osed.

13 He did disclose all arrests, and |ater

14 submtted a witten letter of appeal. He was not

15 made provisional, and is here to appeal today.

16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Board, are there any
17 questions for M. Seegmller? Hearing there are no
18 questions, I'll entertain a notion.

19 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is G onauer.
20 Motion to grant the appeal of Ryan
21 Seegm | ler, and the reason is tine and di stance.
22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
23 Cortez.
24 "1l second the notion.
25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: We have a notion, we
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have a second. All in favor say aye.

(Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Reason being, to --
along with the full disclosure -- or sorry, along
wth the tine and distance is full disclosure.

So congratulations. You will receive your
work card. The office will contact you with next
st eps.

MR. SEEGM LLER: Thank you. Appreciate
your tine.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Agenda Item No. 51,
Henry Qui ntana.

Good norning, Ssir.

MR, QUI NTANA:  Mbrni ng.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: I nvestigate Diaz, why
are we here for M. Quintana?

| NVESTI GATOR DI AZ: The applicant was
denied for a felony possession of cocaine with
intent to distribute conviction out of Salt Lake
City, Uah in 1992. The applicant was sentenced to
27 nmonths in prison

He did disclose the arrest and was aware
he woul d be denied, and submtted a witten letter
of appeal at the tinme of applying. He was not nade

provisional and is here to appeal today.
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1 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any questions --
2 Board, any questions for M. Quintana?
3 Hearing there are no questions, |']
4 entertain a notion.
5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
6 Cortez notioning to approve M. Quintana' s appeal
7 based on tine and distance and full disclosure.
8 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: We have a notion. Do
9 we have a second?
10 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.
11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: We have a notion, we
12 have a second. All in favor say aye.
13 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. So notion
15 passes.
16 You w || get your guard card -- or your
17 work card. The office will contact you with next
18 st eps.
19 MR QUI NTANA: Perfect, thank you.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you.
21 What nunber were you?
22 MR SMTH  73.
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W' Il go ahead. Cone
24 on down, you're the next contestant.
25 So this is Agenda Item No. 73, Joshua
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1 Smth. M. Cuevas, tell us why we're here for
2 M. Smth.
3 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO:  This is
4 | nvesti gator Cuevas for the record.
5 M. Smth was denied for his disclosed
6 felony conviction from 2003 out of California for
7 possessi on of stolen property.
8 He al so di scl osed m sdeneanor convi cti ons,
9 i ncluding 2019 DU, a 2016 di sobey a court order.
10 He was not nade provisional, disclosed all arrests,
11 and was aware he would be denied and is here to
12 appeal .
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Board, any questions
14 for M. Smth?
15 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: For investi gator,
16 did his fingerprints cone in?
17 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZG:  Yes, the
18 fingerprints have been received and they confirned
19 t here's not hing new.
20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Any further questions
22 fromthe Board?
23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
24 Cortez.
25 | do have a question. M. Smth, are
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you -- what's the status of your probation?

MR SMTH |'mnot on probation no nore.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Wien did you
term nate?

MR SMTH | termnated years -- 2020 --
for DU ?

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:  Yes.

MR SMTH '22? '22, | think. '22, '23.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You weren't
sentenced to any tinme, you just got off on
probation?

MR SMTH  Yes.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any further questions
fromthe Board? Ckay. Hearing there are no
guestions, |I'll entertain a notion.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer.

Make a notion to approve -- no. To grant
t he appeal of Joshua Smth, tinme and distance.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. W have a
notion. Do we have a second?

BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: We have a notion, we

have a second. All in favor say aye.
Qpposed?
BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: |'m not opposed.
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1 |*"mgoing to say aye, but | will disclose this was a
2 tad too close for tine and di stance. You just got

3 of f probation. But | amgoing to agree with the

4 not i on.

5 MR SM TH.  Thank you.

6 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, notion passes and
8 your work card will be approved. The office wll

9 contact you for next steps, okay? Thank you.

10 MR. SM TH. Thank you.

11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Now we'l|l take a bri ef
12 recess until 11:30 when everybody el se is supposed
13 to conme in.

14 (OFf record.)

15 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  It's 11:35. Want to
16 make sure everybody's back. W'Ill go ahead and get
17 started. W mght go out a little out of order

18 here, because we don't have a whol e bunch of people
19 in the audience.
20 If you were not here earlier and you did
21 not swear in, which | don't think any of you guys
22 did, if you could please stand and Counsel Harris
23 w il swear you in.
24 DAG HARRIS: |If you're on the agenda or
25 plan on testifying, please stand.
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1 AUDI ENCE MEMBERS,
2 havi ng been duly sworn
3 testified as fol |l ows:
4
5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Probably easier just
6 for me to ask what agenda itemthey are.
7 DAG HARRI'S: DAG Harris, for the record.
8 G ven that they were given the initia
9 start time of 11:30, just to go in order and we'l|l
10 just trail.
11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.
12 Up north, do you have any -- anybody up
13 t here?
14 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK: W have no one in
15 t he audi ence up north.
16 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  All right. We'll go
17 ahead and start with Agenda Item No. 40, Aaron
18 Mller.
19 M. MIller, or Ms. MIler, are you in the
20 audi ence?
21 Agenda Item No. 41, Marshall Brown?
22 MR. BROMN: Yes, nm'am
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Pl ease cone to the
24 front.
25 | nvesti gator Swarthout, can you tell why
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1 we're here for M. Brown?
2 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was
3 denied for a felony conviction and for failure to
4 di scl ose arrest history.
5 May 13th, 2012 out of California. Felony
6 conviction for petty theft with prior jail. Four
7 years prison.
8 April 19th, 2005 out of California.
9 Fel ony, petty theft with prior jail. Three years
10 prison.
11 August 15t h, 1996 out of California.
12 Second degree burglary. Two years, eight nonths
13 prison, plus additional five years for parole
14 vi ol ati on.
15 March 10, 1989 out of California.
16 M sdeneanor petty theft. 15 days jail, 24 nonths
17 probation. Those arrests were disclosed.
18 There is an additional Excel with the rest
19 of his arrests. And those other arrests, none of
20 t hose ot her ones were discl osed.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Sounds good,
22 t hank you.
23 Board, any questions for M. Brown?
24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board indul gence.
25 No questi ons.
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1 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. Hearing there
2 are no questions, I'll entertain a notion.

3 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezick.

4 | nove we uphold the denial based on the
5 fact that M. Brown did not disclose many of his

6 arrests.

7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ckay. So we have a

8 notion. Do we have a second?

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Second. Nunerous
10 arrests, nondiscl osure.

11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  We have a notion, we
12 have a second. All in favor, say aye.

13 (Al'l present Board nenbers voted aye.)

14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, sir, you did

15 di scl ose the first part of the arrests, but the

16 application states that you have to disclose -- you
17 have to tell us all of them And so because you

18 have a whol e second page here that none have been
19 di scl osed, felony nor m sdeneanors were disclosed.
20 So rather than go through that whole
21 history and read it out, |I'msure you' re aware of
22 it. If you're not, the Board -- the licensing
23 office can help you wth that because we now have
24 it.
25 But you do have to wait for one year to
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1 reapply for a work card, okay? So, your application
2 has been denied. You will not get your work card.
3 You're able to reapply in one year. Wrk with them
4 They have all of your information and can help you
5 fill out the application, okay?
6 MR BROWN. Do | get to say anything?
7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Sure. The decision's
8 been made, but --
9 MR. BROMN: Ckay, thank you.
10 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You' re wel cone.
11 Agenda Item No. 42, Brigitte Bautista.
12 Did | say that right?
13 MS. BAUTISTA: It's Brigitte.
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Brigitte, okay.
15 | nvestigator Swarthout, why are we here
16 for Ms. Bautista?
17 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHQUT:  The applicant was
18 denied for a felony conviction and conviction of
19 i1l egal use or possession of a dangerous weapon and
20 failure to disclose.
21 August 25t h, 2012 out of New York.
22 M sdeneanor cri m nal possession, weapon, fourth
23 degree, intent to use. One year probation. That
24 wasn't discl osed.
25 August 14t h, 2007 out of Washi ngton.
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1 Fel ony, robbery, second degree. Sentenced to nine
2 nmonths jail, 12 nonths community custody. That one
3 was di scl osed.
4 July 2nd, 2022 out of Nevada. M sdeneanor
5 donmestic battery. That charge was di sm ssed, but it
6 wasn' t di scl osed.
7 May 8th, 2018 out of Nevada. M sdeneanor
8 battery, that was one di sm ssed.
9 July 3rd, 2017 out of Nevada. M sdeneanor
10 battery, that one was di sm ssed.
11 January 24th, 2015 out of Kansas. Fel ony,
12 aggravated assault; felony, crimnal danmage to
13 property, m sdeneanor. That one was di sm ssed.
14 Decenber 29th, 2013 out of Kansas. Fel ony
15 donmestic battery. Sentenced to six nonths' jail
16 suspended, 12 nont hs probation.
17 June 16t h, 2010, out of Washington. G oss
18 m sdeneanor, assault, fourth degree. Sentenced to
19 365 days jail suspended, 24 nonths probation and
20 $5, 000 fi ne.
21 Decenber 23rd, 2009 out of Washi ngton.
22 G oss m sdeneanor, theft, third degree. Sentenced
23 to 365 days jail, 338 days suspended, and a fine of
24 $50.
25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.
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1 Board, any questions for M. Bautista?
2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
3 Cortez. Brigitte, why did you fail to disclose your
4 convi ctions?
5 M5. BAUTI STA: | was just in a car
6 accident, and that's how | got this scar on ny face.
7 They said it was going to jog nmy nenory. So when |
8 went in, | tried to wite down the nost that | could
9 remenber.
10 I"'mrehabilitated now. |'ve been doing
11 what | need to do. | just want to put ny past
12 behind me. | don't want that to define ne. |
13 actually wote sonething, but I don't knowif | can
14 read what | wote.
15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: | don't -- | have no
16 further questions.
17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Board, any further
18 questions?
19 Hearing there are no -- sorry. Typically,
20 we don't allow folks to read things. So at this
21 point we're going to go ahead and not do that.
22 Board, if we have no further questions,
23 "Il entertain a notion.
24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
25 Cortez.
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1 |"mgoing to notion that we uphold the
2 deni al based on nondi scl osure of a nunber of
3 convi ctions.
4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a
5 notion. Do we have a second?
6 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.
7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
8 have a second. All in favor say aye.
9 (Al'l present Board nenbers voted aye.)
10 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  So, the notion -- you
11 won't be issued your work card today. The reason is
12 t he nunber of interactions that you had with | aw
13 enforcenent, but al so the nondiscl osures.
14 So, | know you said you had an acci dent
15 and you have an issue with your nenory. You are
16 able to cone back and reapply in one year. Wrk
17 with the office, because now they have your arrest
18 hi story and they can help you through that, okay?
19 So don't be afraid to cone and ask them for help,
20 because they will help support you. 1|'ve been
21 working with this group a long tine. They are
22 real ly good about that. You can come back in one
23 year, reapply and, you know, go through this process
24 again. And then, you know, the outconme would
25 probably be different, okay?
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1 But the nost inportant thing is to nake

2 sure that you report everything, okay?

3 M5. BAUTI STA: Ckay. Thank you.

4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good | uck to you.

5 M5. BAUTI STA:  Thank you.

6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Agenda |tem No. 43,

7 John Nel son.

8 Sir, were you sworn in?

9 MR. NELSON: Yes.

10 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: kay, thank you.

11 | nvestigator Swarthout, why are -- can you
12 tell us why we're here for M. Nel son?

13 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHQUT:  The applicant was
14 denied for a felony conviction.

15 May 9th, 2010 out of Nevada. Fel ony,

16 battery with substantial bodily harm Sentenced to
17 12 to 36 nonths NDOC, probation for three years.

18 The applicant disclosed this. The

19 appl i cant was di shonorably di scharged from probation
20 on 11-16-2012.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Board, if | can ask,
22 because | know you guys have nore experience than I
23 do, what does di shonorably di scharged nean from
24 probati on?
25 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Didn't follow the
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rules. Pretty nuch it.

MR- NELSON: | didn't pay -- oh, sorry. |
can say?

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: | was going to say,
we m ght -- probably going to get nore information
out of you. So you were given -- this is Board
Menmber Cortez.

You were given a nunber of court orders.
What did you not fulfill?

MR. NELSON. Basically, | didn't --
didn't pay the restitution.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: How much was the
restitution?

MR. NELSON: Four grand, | believe. No,
12 grand.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did you conplete
your community service hours.

MR NELSON: Yes.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did you go to any
cl asses?

MR. NELSON: Yes -- | didn't think I had
to do no classes. | just had community service.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Have you had any
kind of -- this is battery with substantial bodily

harm not domesti c.
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1 MR. NELSON: This is just substantia
2 bodi |y harm
3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So it's not
4 donestic --
5 MR. NELSON: No, ma'am --
6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: It was just
7 anot her --
8 THE REPORTER: Excuse ne. Really fast.
9 MR, NELSON: Sorry.
10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So, it was the
11 restitution. And you said it was 1, 000.
12 MR. NELSON: It was 12 grand.
13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Ch, 12, 000.
14 MR. NELSON: | think I only got, like, a
15 gr and.
16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You said you've only
17 paid 1,000 of it?
18 MR. NELSON: | think it was. Sonething
19 l'i ke that.
20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Are you aware if you
21 have any civil |liens on you?
22 MR. NELSON: No, ma'am
23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: |nvesti gator
24 Swart hout, do we have any kind of know edge of any
25 kind of |iens based off --
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1 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: When | searched
2 the case, it was only the case that showed up. It
3 didn't show any liens out of the Ei ghth Judicial.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Ckay.

5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Basically, because he
6 couldn't afford it they discharged you.

7 MR. NELSON: Yes.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So, in the adult

9 system and |I'mnot sure howit works as far as

10 restitution, usually the case stays open until that
11 restitution is paid in full. Especially if this is,
12 i ke, a substantial bodily harm

13 But, in that case, | would inmagine the

14 victimhas recourse to file a -- | would inmagine a
15 civil lawsuit pending if there were any kind of

16 nmedi cal damages or not. So |I'mnot sure how it

17 wor ked out with the adult system But | know if

18 there is outstanding restitution, that case is not
19 going to close until that restitutionis paid in
20 full. But | --
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: It does show on the
22 paperwork it was di scharged.
23 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  Yes. It does
24 show that the case was cl osed.
25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Board, any further
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1 questions for M. Nelson?
2 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer.
3 M. Nelson, what -- if you get a card,
4 what do you plan on doing with it?
5 MR NELSON: | was just trying to work.
6 Just basically.
7 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Do you have any
8 prospects at this tinme?
9 MR. NELSON: Couple of them security

10 jobs. Oher than that, I'mjust working right now.
11 Security, | work Salvation Arny right here. So |

12 just want to work, that's all. And if it betters ny
13 opportunity, that's really what | went for, to ask.
14 And | haven't been in trouble in a long tinme. Check

15 nmy record.

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: \What have you been
17 doi ng recently?

18 MR. NELSON: Just working, taking care of
19 nmy children.

20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  What ki nd of work?
21 MR. NELSON: Security at the Sal vation

22 Arny. Cook at the KFC.

23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Any further questions

24 fromthe Board?
25 Has he disclosed -- you did disclose,
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okay.

If there's no further questions, 'l
entertain a notion

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
Cortez. I'mgoing to notion that we approve
M. Nelson's appeal and grant himhis work card.

MR. NELSON: Thank you, so nuch.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W' re al nost done.

So, we have a notion. Do we have a
second?

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER.  Gronauer, second.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: So we have a notion,
we have a second. All in favor say aye.

(Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, the notion passes.
You wi Il get your work card. The office wll work
with you and call you in a couple days and help you
get through that, okay?

MR. NELSON: Thank you, so nuch, guys.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Stay out of
t roubl e.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: (Good luck to you.

Agenda Item No. 44 Benjamn Hall. Trail.
Agenda Item No. 45, Guillerno Martinez.

MR, MARTI NEZ: Here.
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1 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Yes. Good afternoon.
2 MR. MARTI NEZ: Good afternoon, guys.

3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: I nvesti gat or

4 Swart hout, tell us why we're here for M. Martinez.
5 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was
6 denied for a felony conviction and failure to

7 di scl ose arrest history.

8 August 15, 2006 out of California. Felony
9 for transporting illegal aliens and aiding and

10 abetting. 24 nonths BOP. Ganted tinme served. Two
11 years supervi sed release to include four nonths of
12 hone detenti on.

13 Sept enber 14t h, 2023 out of California.

14 Robbery. He was arrested on a fugitive warrant out
15 here for that case.

16 Decenber 10th, 2007 out of Nevada. |It's
17 drugs. 30 hours conmunity service.

18 The applicant was not nmade provisional

19 because at the tine he submtted his application,
20 t he other investigator had asked for court docunents
21 dealing with that warrant arrest. And we had not
22 received them to nmy know edge.
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  And the warrant arrest
24 Is for 20237
25 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  Yes, that's
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Sept enber 14t h.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Board, any questions
for M. Martinez?

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber

M. Martinez, why did you fail to disclose
your convictions?

1

2

3

4

5 Cortez.
6

7

8 MR. MARTINEZ: The first one is 2006. |
9

forgot about that one. But the one in 2023, | was
10 goi ng through the case. | have proof it was
11 dismssed. | was wongfully arrested for it.
12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Ckay, hang on. Wy
13 did you fail to disclose it? |'mnot asking about

14 t he di sposition.

15 MR MARTINEZ: | did put it -- this one.
16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: On here, on your

17 appl i cation?

18 MR. MARTINEZ: Ch, this one? | didn't put
19 It because ny attorney had told ne that | was going
20 to get dismssed and it wasn't going to be in ny

21 record. So --

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This was an attorney
23 in California?

24 MR. MARTINEZ: Correct. | was --

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did your attorney
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help you fill out the application?

MR. MARTINEZ: No, he didn't.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And the reason why
| *' m asking you that is because the attorney would
have seen a nice big red stop sign. You need to
list all of your convictions, despite the
di sposition, despite what city, what state, and if
It was dismssed. So I'm-- it's sad to hear that
your attorney counseled you incorrectly.

MR. MARTI NEZ: Correct, correct.

And | have proof that it was di sm ssed,
and --

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: | understand that,

t hank you. No further questions.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Any further
qguestions fromthe Board?

I f we have no further questions, Il
entertain a notion.

BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick. |
nove we uphold the denial for M. Martinez based on
the fact that he failed to disclose his crimnal
hi story.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a nmotion. Do
we have a second?

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
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Cortez. | amgoing to second that notion based on

no di scl osure.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. W have a

noti on, we have a second. All in favor say aye.
(Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. So, you know,
again, as she stated, it's on the application. You
have to put in all of the information. Because of
that, you're not going to be granted your work card
today. You are able to cone back in one year,
reapply, and nake sure that you list all of your --

MR. MARTI NEZ: Previous past history.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Yeah. And if they ask
you for any paperwork, make sure you turn it in.
Don't bring it here to turnit in to us, you need to
turn it in to them before the neeting.

MR. MARTI NEZ: Thank you.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Yeah. Good luck to

you, Sir.

Ckay. W already did Agenda |Item No. 46.

So, Agenda Item No. 47, Collins has been
post poned.

Agenda Item No. 48, WIIingham has been
post poned.

W' ve done Agenda Item No. 49.
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VW' re now on Agenda Item 50, Tavita Tuaau.

Seeing they're not here, we'll trail that.
W al ready done Agenda Item No. 51.
Agenda Item No. 52 has been post poned.
Agenda Item No. 53, Chantia Reynol ds.

So 52 is at 12:307?
BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Post poned, right?

MADAM CHAIR NI XON: So the rest of the

What we'll do nowis go around the room

Sir, you' ve been here the | ongest, |

MR JOHNSON:  59.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  59.

Sir, what's your Agenda |ten?

MR MARTINEZ: [|'mjust here for an

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: What's your nane,
MR. AKINS: Debonair AKins.
DAG HARRI S: 57.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. What's your

MR MARTI NEZ: Andre, 61.
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1 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: 61, okay.
2 If you have -- if you weren't here earlier
3 to be sworn in, could you please stand up and rai se
4 your right hand and Counsel Harris will swear you
5 in.
6
7 AUDI ENCE MEMBERS,
8 havi ng been duly sworn
9 testified as foll ows:
10
11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: So, we'll go ahead and
12 start at the beginning, Agenda Item No. 57, Debonair
13 Akins. Are you here?
14 MR. AKINS: Yes.
15 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Pl ease conme up to the
16 podi um
17 | nvestigator Bl acknore, hi.
18 | NVESTI GATOR BLACKMORE:  Hi .
19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Can you tell us why
20 we're here for M. AKins?
21 | NVESTI GATOR BLACKMORE:  Yes.
22 So, the applicant was denied for a weapons
23 conviction and failure to disclose.
24 He does have a 2023, January 30t h,
25 carrying conceal ed weapon. 180 days suspended
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1 sentence, 48 hours of community service, and to

2 conplete firearnms safety course. He did not

3 di scl ose his arrest.

4 And then he al so has a January 30th as

5 wel |, 2023. This was actually denied, disregard for

6 safety of person or property. Applicant did not

7 di sclose this arrest.

8 As well as -- top of that, sane date,

9 there was a use, possession of drug paraphernali a.
10 Not i ce possession was |isted and applicant did not
11 di scl ose arrest.

12 He was not nade provisional and that

13 w shes to appeal .

14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Board, any questions
15 for M. AKins?

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
17 Cortez.

18 M. Akins, a couple questions, but No. 1,
19 why did you fail to disclose any of your

20 convi ctions?

21 MR AKINS: Well, | just kind of signed up
22 for the job, so | thought that the background report
23 woul d be enough to state for itself.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did you go sl ow

25 filling out that application?
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1 MR AKINS: | filled it out. | nean,

2 yeah, | was there for, |like, an hour for sure, just

3 doi ng paperwor K.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Ckay. The reason

5 why |'m asking is because you m ght have m ssed t hat

6 nice big red stop sign where it asks you to list al

7 of your crimnal convictions. There's one page in

8 there that literally has a big red stop sign.

9 The foll ow ng page is when you're supposed
10 to list all of that. So that's why I was asking you
11 I f you went nice and slow on it, because you failed
12 tolist all of it.

13 Second question is, what are you doing

14 running around with a conceal ed weapon?

15 MR AKINS: Well, | have a CCW And the
16 conceal ed weapon that | had -- the conceal ed weapon
17 that | had was a nine mllineter P80 pistol. So I
18 built that fromscratch. The Nevada | aw states that
19 you can build your own firearm And it be fine

20 wi thout the CCW But | went to go take the CCW

21 anyways. And | al so bought a shotgun, which is

22 where the situation canme in. | had a safety

23 failure. So we exchanged words wth the court, got
24 t hat handl ed.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood. Ckay.
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Thank you.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any further questions
fromthe Board? Hearing there are no further
questions, I'll entertain a notion.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
Cortez. | amgoing to notion to uphold the deni al
based on the nondisclosure and tine and di stance.
W' ve got charges of |ast year.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: So we have a notion.
Do we have a second?

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER.  Gronauer, second.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: We have a notion, we
have a second. All in favor say aye.

(Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Motion passes. You
wi Il not get your work card at this time. You do
have the information, and you're able to apply in
one year. The office wll help you if you can't
remenber or if you just don't have all of the
information that you need. So definitely want the
office to help you with that.

THE REPORTER: Can | interrupt? They're
really | oud next door.

(OFf record.)
MADAM CHAI R NI XON: So, we're on Agenda
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1 tem No. 58, Oscar Huerta.

2 DAG HARRI S: We're going out of order

3 since the next one cones at 12: 30.

4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Donal d Johnson.

5 Agenda Item No. 59, Donal d Johnson.

6 Have you been sworn in, sir?

7 MR, JOHNSON:  Yes, ma' am

8 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: I nvestigator Cuevas,
9 why are we here for M. Johnson?

10 I NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO  So,

11 M. Johnson is returning at the Board's request from

12 t he Decenber Board neeti ng.

13 Wien he was seen, he had a 1998 fel ony

14 conviction that showed on the results as a lifetine
15 probation. He was asked to provide court docunents
16 that he is no | onger on paper and it was conpl et ed.

17 He has done so, provided fromthe State of M chi gan,
18 court docunents to show that he actually was only
19 required to conplete one year of probation and has

20 been di schar ged.

21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Awesone.

22 Board, any questions for M. Johnson?

23 Hearing there are no questions, |['ll entertain a
24 nmot i on.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Menber Cortez
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1 notioning to approve the appeal for M. Johnson.
2 Thank you for doing exactly what you were
3 asked to do.
4 MR. JOHNSON: Yes, ma'am Thank you.
5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  We have a notion. Do
6 we have a second?
7 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck, seconds.
8 THE COURT: We have a notion, we have a
9 second. Al in favor say aye.
10 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Mbtion passes. The
12 office wll contact you with next steps, okay?
13 MR. JOHNSON: Yes, ma'am Thank you.
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you, very nuch.
15 MR, JOHNSON: Have a good day.
16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You, too.
17 Agenda Item No. 61, Andre Hicks.
18 MR. H CKS: Hello.
19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Hel | o.
20 | nvesti gat or Cuevas, why are we here for
21 M. Hi cks?
22 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO M. Hicks was
23 denied for his listed felony conviction from 2011
24 out of California for sale of controlled substance
25 where he was sentenced to 180 days jail and three
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1 years' probation
2 He al so has a 2022 m sdeneanor in
3 California for grand theft. Looks Iike he was al so
4 sentenced to three days jail.
5 A 2016 felony from Nevada whi ch was
6 dismssed. It was an arrest warrant for another
7 state for the -- for California.
8 2004 m sdeneanor from California for
9 publ i c nui sance.
10 2003 arrest fromCalifornia for possess
11 counterfeit item He did list all arrests and was
12 not put on provisional and wi shes to appeal.
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Board, are
14 t here any questions for M. Hicks?
15 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer
16 Good afternoon, M. Hicks.
17 MR. HI CKS: Hello.
18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Can you expl ain
19 the grand theft in July of 20227
20 MR. HI CKS: That actually was nine, ten
21 years ago, that | actually had that case.
22 But when | went to San Diego to go see ny
23 kids, the kids in San Diego, | got pulled over
24 crossing the border because | went to Tijuana. And
25 that's when | had the warrant. So that's why it
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1 says 2022. And | had to do the three days, they

2 dropped the case or whatever. But since | live here
3 now, here since 2015.

4 So it was, |like, 2014 or 2013 | stole from
5 my job to -- | was going through -- nme and ny famly
6 was homel ess or whatever and we were sleeping on the
7 streets, parks. | had ny daughter's three kids at

8 that tine.

9 And | was just really depressed and

10 ended up stealing fromthe job. To nove here to try
11 to, you know, do better. Been here nine years now.
12 Had two nore kids now.

13 So, the reason it says 2022 is because the
14 warrant was from 2013 or sonething like that. So

15 when they arrested ne, | told them!| had been

16 negative for nine years now and dropped the case.

17 And | was able to get out in three days. | haven't
18 done nothing since |I've been here.

19 Those crines, of course, when | was in ny
20 20s. | just turned 40, so trying to change ny life.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  What do you do now?
22 MR HCKS: | was working at Jay's Market
23 and Door Dash. But the job, security. M cousin,
24 he does security, and his checks be a |l ot better
25 than mne. So | was, |ike, |'ve done security
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before in San Diego. So that's it.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ckay. Any further
guestions fromthe Board?

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I nvesti gat or

1
2
3
4
5 Cuevas, is there a -- any kind of paperwork to back
6 up what he's saying.

7 MR, HI CKS: Yeah, so --

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, this is for

9

t he investigator.

10 MR HCKS: | was thought you was asking
11 ne.
12 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO.  So, yes. The

13 original looks Iike it was 2011. And then it does
14 show in 2022. He did provide nme court docunents

15 fromCalifornia, San Diego.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
17 Cortez.

18 Just to clarify, so the original charges
19 were back in 20- -- what year?

20 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO:  2011.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Got it, thank you.
22 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any further questions
23 for the Board? Hearing there are no further

24 questions, I'll entertain a notion.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
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1 Cortez notioning to approve M. Hick's appeal for
2 t he guard card based on full disclosure, tinme and
3 di st ance.
4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: So we have a noti on.
5 Do we have a second?
6 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.
7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
8 have a second. All in favor say aye.
9 (Al'l present Board nenbers voted aye.)
10 MR. H CKS: Thank you, guys.
11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You're welcone. So it
12 wi |l be granted. The office will contact you for
13 next steps, okay?
14 MR. HI CKS: Thank you, guys, so nuch.
15 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Yeah, you're wel cone.
16 So when was the next group told to cone
17 I n?
18 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NO. 12: 30.
19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  We'll go back and go
20 t hrough our trailed itens before we nove on to the
21 next section.
22 Agenda Item No. 40, Aaron Mller. s
23 there an Aaron Ml ler?
24 And then Agenda Item No. 44, Benjamn
25 Hal | ?

www.|exitaslegal .com EkE X I TA S 702-476-4500



Board Meeting In re: Private Investigators Licensing Board Meeting

Page 139

1 So, seeing that they were told to cone in
2 at what tine, 11:30? Do we want to wait until the

3 end of the session?

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Until 12: 30.

5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So we have one ot her

6 Agenda Item No. 50, Tavita Tuaau? No? So we have
7 those three agenda itenms. They were told to conme in
8 at 11:30. We'll wait until 12:30 and then nake a

9 notion after that.

10 Does anybody need a quick break or good to
11 keep goi ng?

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: (Good to go. Just

13 t wo.

14 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  Sir, you cane in

15 first. Wat agenda item are you?

16 MR. LUONG  55.

17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  55. kay.

18 And, sir, what agenda itemwere you? O
19 ma'am \What's your nane?
20 MR, ISON: |son, M chael.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  62.
22 Gentl enmen, you need to stand up so you can
23 be sworn in by Counsel Harris and we'll go ahead and
24 t ake you guys.
25
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1 AUDI ENCE MEMBERS,

2 havi ng been duly sworn

3 testified as foll ows:

4

5 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: M. Luong, if you

6 woul d come up.

7 I nvestigator Diaz, Agenda Item No. 55.

8 | nvestigator Diaz, could you tell us why we're here
9 for M. Luong?

10 | NVESTI GATOR DI AZ: The applicant was

11 denied for a felony burglary conviction out of

12 Rancho Cucanonga, California in 2000. The applicant
13 was sentenced to 36 nonths probation and did receive
14 a California PC 1203.4 dismssal. He did disclose
15 the arrest and was aware he woul d be denied and

16 | ater submtted a witten letter of appeal. He was
17 not made provisional and is here to appeal today.

18 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you.

19 Board, any questions for -- am|
20 pronounci ng your nane right, Luong?
21 MR. LUONG Yes.
22 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Any questions
23 for M. Luong? Hearing there are no questions, |l
24 entertain a notion.
25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
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1 Cortez notioning to approve M. Luong's appeal for
2 the work card based on full disclosure, tinme and
3 di st ance.
4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion. Do
5 we have a second?
6 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.
7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
8 have a second. All in favor say aye.
9 (Al'l present Board nenbers voted aye.)
10 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. So the notion
11 passes. You will get your work card. The office
12 w ||l contact you for next steps, okay?
13 MR. LUONG Thank you, nma'am
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you. Good | uck
15 to you.
16 Agenda Item No. 62, M chael |son.
17 | nvestigator Cuevas, could you tell us why
18 we're here for M. |son?
19 I NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO: M. Ison was
20 denied for his disclosed 2008 felony fromCalifornia
21 for burglary, first degree; use of firearmduring
22 commi ssion of felony. He was sentenced to eight
23 years prison.
24 He al so has a 2004 fel ony conviction from
25 California for transport controll ed substance.
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1 A 1996 felony conviction from California
2 for transport controll ed substance again.
3 He does have another felony from 2007 out
4 of California, but that was dism ssed and deni ed,
5 and that was for the manufacturer, possession of
6 danger ous weapon and possession of controll ed
7 subst ance.
8 He did disclose all arrests and was not
9 made provisional and is here to appeal.
10 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Board, any
11 questions for M. Ison? Hearing there's no
12 questions, I'll entertain a notion.
13 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezick. |
14 nove to grant the work card for M. Ison based on
15 full disclosure of crimnal history and tinme and
16 di st ance.
17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a
18 notion. Do we have a second?
19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
20 Cortez. 1'll second.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a
22 notion, we have a second. All in favor say aye.
23 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Modtion passes. (ood
25 | uck to you.
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1 MR. LUONG  Thank you.
2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, we have no one in
3 t he audi ence, and the next group is supposed to cone
4 inat 12:30. So we'll be on recess until 12:30.
5 (O f record.)
6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  It's 12:30. W'Ill go
7 ahead and start working on the next session.
8 Pl ease, if you weren't here earlier, and |
9 don't think any of you guys have been, please stand
10 up and Counsel Harris will swear you in.
11
12 AUDI ENCE MEMBERS,
13 havi ng been duly sworn
14 testified as follows:
15
16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You guys can have a
17 seat .
18 M. Bezick, is there anybody up north?
19 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK: W have nobody in
20 t he north.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. So we'll start
22 Wwth the trailed itens. | think is it -- start with
23 447
24 DAG HARRI S:  There's 40, 44, and 50.
25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So Aaron MIller. Is
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1 there an Aaron MIler? Okay. No Aaron Ml er.
2 Then we have 44, Benjamn Hall? Ckay.
3 And then the last one fromthe | ast
4 session is Agenda Item No. 50, Tavita Tuaau.
5 Board, since they did not make the | ast
6 session, they were required to be here by 11: 30,
7 It's now 12:30, | wll entertain a notion for those
8
9

12 st at ed,

22 Johnson.
23

25

10 notioning to uphold the denial for itens No. 40, 44,
11 and 50 for
they were told to be here at 11:30. It is
13 now 12: 32.

14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a

15 notion. Do we have a second?

16 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.

17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
18 have a second. All in favor say aye.

19 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay, notion passes.
21 We're now into Agenda Item No. 52, Tamara

24 Trail that for now.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Menmber Cortez

no call, no show They were -- as

That one was post poned.

So Agenda Item No. 53, Chantia Reynol ds.

Agenda Item No. 54, Devan Cooper-Wal ker.
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1 Good afternoon.
2 MR. COOPER- WALKER: How are you doi ng?
3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good. How are you.
4 MR. COOPER-WALKER: | can't conplain.
5 It's Wednesday.
6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good.
7 | nvestigator Diaz, could you tell us why
8 we're here for M. Cooper-Wal ker?
9 | NVESTI GATOR DI AZ: The applicant was
10 denied for a m sdeneanor possess, slash, use
11 danger ous weapon conviction out of Las Vegas, Nevada
12 in 2022. The applicant was sentenced to a suspended
13 60 days in jail. He did disclose the arrest and
14 | ater submtted a witten letter of appeal. He was
15 not made provisional, and is here to appeal today.
16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ckay. Board, any
17 questions for M. Wal ker?
18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
19 Cortez.
20 M. Cooper-Wal ker, talk to me about the
21 charge, possession of use of dangerous weapon. What
22 happened?
23 MR COOPER-WALKER: That was an i nci dent
24 back in July of 2022, like they said, at work, at a
25 grill house in North Las Vegas. Where | shot a
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1 firearmin the air. Later on that day -- because |
2 wor ked that night, got off that norning. So |ater

3 on that day, maybe roughly maybe 1:30, 2:00 in the

4 afternoon, that's when the cops cane to the house,

5 revealed to ne that they had footage of it. And I

6 conplied wwith them let themknow, yeah, it was ne

7 on the footage. It was ne. This and that. And

8 went to jail for, | think, like, 18 hours. Like, a
9 long 18 hours. And then bailed out and did the

10 community service, did everything instructed.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You said you fired a
12 shot in the air?

13 MR. COOPER- WALKER:  Yes.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: For what ?

15 MR COOPER- WALKER:  Because -- |ike, that
16 sounds really bad, but all I can do is be direct.

17 Like, it was 4th of July night, | was upset | had to
18 wor k, and things got the best, enotions got high,

19 and that's what happened that night.
20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Have you taken a
21 firearmtraining course?
22 MR. COOPER-WALKER:  Since then, yes.
23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: No. Prior to, since
24 t hen?
25 MR COOPER-WALKER: Prior to and since
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t hen, yes. Absolutely.
BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And during that
course, did, at any point, an instructor tell you

that firing a shot in the air was reasonabl e or

1

2

3

4

5 al | owed?
6 MR. COOPER-WALKER: Negative. No to be

7 di rect.

8 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, you were at work

9 and you were upset. Were you working with other

10 peopl e?

11 MR. COOPER-WALKER: Oh, yeah, | wasn't the
12 only one at work that night, yeah. It was ne and

13 ot hers, yes.

14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So you just went out
15 into the parking lot and shot a shot in the air?

16 MR. COOPER-WALKER: Yeah. It was just one
17 of those random nonents, 4th of July night, working
18 outside of a grillhouse with a bunch of people. And
19 that was that. | was held accountable for what |

20 did. And nade no nentions of anything el se.

21 MADAM CHAI R Nl XON:  Did you get fired?

22 MR. COOPER-WALKER: ~ Sayi ng -- what?

23 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  Did you get fired from
24 the --

25 MR. COOPER-WALKER:  Ch, absol utely.
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1 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.
2 MR COOPER-WALKER: Yeah. That was a
3 gi ven.
4 MADAM CHAI R Nl XON:  Did you have a CCOWP
5 MR COOPER-WALKER: At the tinme, yes.
6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You di d.
7 MR. COOPER-WALKER: | currently have one
8 now, yes. The CCWwas given back, that PILB ended
9 up giving ny guard card back |ater on once -- down
10 the road after the case closed. Like, Cctober --
11 Sept enber, October, Novenber. Later on that year.
12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So - -
13 MR COOPER-WALKER: That's why -- go
14 ahead, |'msorry.
15 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So you were a security
16 officer at the grill house?
17 MR, COOPER- WALKER:  Yes.
18 MADAM CHAIR NIl XON:  Wth -- arned security
19 officer?
20 MR. COOPER- WALKER:  Yes.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Got it. Ckay,
22 different. Ckay.
23 MR. COOPER-WALKER: My bad if there was
24 any conf usi on.
25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: No, | think that
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1 probably -- so, just to be clear, you're an arned
2 security officer out on site, upset that you were
3 wor ki ng, and you fired your firearm CKkay.
4 MR. COOPER- WALKER:  Yes.
5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. Board, any
6 ot her questions? Hearing there are no further
7 guestions, I'll entertain a notion.
8 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK: This is Bezick. |
9 nove we grant the work card for M. Cooper-Wl ker
10 based on full disclosure of crimnal history.
11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  We have a notion. Do
12 we have a second?
13 |f there's no second what do we do?
14 DAG HARRI'S: Then the notion fails.
15 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  The notion fails.
16 So with that notion failing, |l
17 entertai n anot her notion.
18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer
19 Make a notion to deny Devan Cooper-\Wal ker
20 his work card. Wapons charge only seven nont hs
21 ago. That's ny reason.
22 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. So tinme and
23 di st ance.
24 kay. We have a notion. Do we have a
25 second?
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1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
2 Cortez. |'malso going to second that notion based
3 on tinme and distance. W have a weapons charge that
4 occurred in 2022. And | did not hear enough of a

5 justification or reasoning as to why a 30-sone year
6 old with experience of a firearm thinking it's a

7 good idea to fire a weapon -- or fire a bullet in

8 the air because it's 4th of July.

9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
10 have a second. All in favor say aye.

11 Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Aye.

14 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Nay.

15 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Sorry. Opposed?

16 Ckay.

17 So the notion -- the second notion passes
18 to uphold the denial.

19 MR COOPER- WALKER:  Under st ood.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You know, you're nore
21 t han wel cone to cone and apply in a year. But,
22 yeah, they're pretty serious charges for --
23 MR COOPER-WALKER: If | may ask a
24 question. | don't nean to interrupt you by any
25 stretch of the imagination. |If ny guard card and
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1 CCWwere given back to ne later on that year, which
2 Is the year 2022 and here we are in 2024, does that
3 wei gh any option to the reason of this denial?

4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  No.

5 MR COOPER- WALKER:  Ckay, absol utely.

6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you.

7 MR, COOPER- WALKER:  Got you.

8 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. Agenda |tem No.
9 56, Maurice Harris.

10 MR, HARRI S. Yes.

11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good afternoon, sir.
12 MR. HARRIS: Hello, everyone.

13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Hel | o.

14 | nvestigator Diaz, could you please tell
15 us why we're here for M. Harris?

16 | NVESTI GATOR DI AZ: The applicant was

17 denied for a felony robbery conviction out of

18 Chicago, Illinois in 2002. The applicant was

19 sentenced to 18 nonths probation.
20 The applicant also has a driving under the
21 I nfl uence m sdeneanor conviction in 2007. He was
22 sentenced to one year probation. This arrest was
23 di scl osed.
24 There was al so a donestic battery
25 m sdenmeanor conviction in 2012. Sentenced to one
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year probation. This arrest was not disclosed.

He did not disclose all arrests and was
aware he would be denied and submtted a witten
letter of appeal. The applicant was not nade
provisional, and is here to appeal.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, on the crim nal
history, the |ast one wasn't put on there. Ws that
one found fromthe fingerprints; is that...

| NVESTI GATOR DI AZ: That is correct.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Board, any
questions for M. Harris?

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
Cortez.

M. Harris, could you tell us why you
failed to disclose the last arrest that was found in
the fingerprints?

MR HARRIS: [In 20127

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Investigate Diaz, is
that the year, 2012?

| NVESTI GATOR DI AZ: Yes, it is a 2012
convi cti on.

MR HARRIS. kay. So what happened with
that -- okay. It's -- it mght sound crazy.
Honestly, | was going to cone hone fromwork. And

then the followng day | had court for child support
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1 fromny daughter. And ny youngest son nother | ust

2 basically sent ne to jail for donmestic, just so ny
3 daughter nother can nmake a case for ny daughter

4 because she thought she should be hone with her at

5 the age of 11 because she was going to start her

6 peri od.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Hang on, M. Harris.
8 | believe Investigator Diaz was trying to say

9 sonet hi ng?

10 I NVESTI GATOR DI AZ: No, ma'am |

11 apol ogi ze.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: (kay.

13 M. Harris, let me get back to ny

14 question, because you're telling nme what occurred.
15 But ny question is, why did you fail to disclose

16 t hat conviction? You told us about the other two,
17 but you didn't tell us about this one.

18 MR. HARRIS: Honestly, | honestly forgot
19 about it. It was sone crazy. And she cane and got
20 me right out. She cane and bonded ne out. Cane and
21 visit me the next day and everyt hing.
22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Investigate D az,
23 could you tell me one nore tinme, ny apol ogi es, what
24 were the charges and di sposition?
25 | NVESTI GATOR DI AZ: Yes, ma'am For 2012
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or for all of thenf
BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: The 2012.
| NVESTI GATOR DI AZ: The fingerprint report

reads a donestic battery, m sdeneanor conviction,

1
2
3
4
5 class A, gquilty, probation of one year. And that is
6 dated January 12, 2012.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: M. Harris, have you
8 had any | aw enforcenent contact since?

9

MR HARRIS: No, | don't -- haven't been

10 in any trouble or anything.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: What do you plan to
12 do with a guard card if granted one?

13 MR HARRIS: Honestly, I"'mmarried with
14 five kids and a five-year old grandson. And | just
15 want a second job so | can support them better.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Do you have a

17 conpany or agency that's willing to give you one, or
18 is there one on standby? Have you --

19 MR HARRIS: Yes. The Walmart security.
20 | believe the lady's nane is Deja. She cane to ne
21 and asked me would | like to work for her. She saw
22 me wor ki ng at anot her job doing security. So | said
23 yes, and | went along through it.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood, thank
25 you.
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1 MR HARRIS. And, like, | was young, when
2 t hat happened, you know? Just -- |'m ol der now,

3 wser. | just want to support ny famly.

4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any ot her questions

5 fromthe Board? Hearing there are no further

6 questions, I'll entertain a notion.

7 MR HARRIS: My | say anything?

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
9 Cortez. Under normal circunstances, because you

10 have failed to disclose, | would normally deny or

11 recomend the uphold -- upheld the denial. However,
12 because there was tine and distance, talking over

13 ten years ago, you failed to disclose one of -- out
14 of the three. | amgoing to notion to overturn the
15 deni al and grant you the work card.

16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a nmotion. Do
17 we have a second?

18 No second, the notion fails. So we'll

19 entertai n another notion.
20 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezick. |
21 make a notion to uphold the denial based on
22 nondi scl osure of crimnal history.
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a nmotion. Do
24 we have a second? Al in favor -- we have a notion.
25 Do we have a second? Sorry.
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1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.
2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
3 have a second. All in favor say aye.
4 Aye.
) BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Aye.
6 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Aye.
7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Opposed?
8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Nay.
9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, unfortunately,
10 because you didn't disclose that one we're going to
11 have to remai n consistent and say that we can't nove
12 forward and grant you a work card.
13 You are able to cone back in one year and
14 reapply. And these folks will help you. They have
15 all of your history, and so as |long as you don't get
16 in any trouble between now and then, you will be
17 able to use the sane paperwork to help you fill this
18 out, okay? W hope to see you in another year,
19 okay?
20 MR HARRIS: How do | get it disclosed?
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So - -
22 MR HARRIS: | knew that | would have done
23 It back then.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, disclosing is just
25 telling us that it happened, right? So you told us
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1 about two of the itens. You didn't tell us about

2 the third item

3 MR HARRIS: | forgot about that,

4 honest | y.

5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: | under st ood.

6 MR HARRIS: And they told nme about it --
7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: When they ran your

8 fingerprints.

9 MR. HARRIS: | honestly forgot about that.
10 But they told ne to make sure | tell you guys.

11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W understand t hat.

12 But unfortunately, we have nmany people cone in front
13 of us that choose not to tell us or they forget

14 because it's been so |ong ago. And we have to

15 remai n consi stent, because we deny themas well.

16 You have an opportunity to cone back and see us in
17 one year, and then you have all this paperwork to go
18 by to do it again, okay?

19 MR HARRIS: So in a year | just file
20 anot her notion?
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You go see the office
22 and fill out another application and then you'l
23 have all -- they'll have that information to help
24 you fill out your application.
25 MR HARRIS: Al right. Thank you.
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1 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Good luck to you.
2 Thank you.
3 Agenda |Item No. 58, Oscar Huert a.
4 | NVESTI GATOR DIAZ: He's in Carson City.
5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ch, he is. (kay.
6 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK: And he needs to be
7 sworn in.
8 AUDI ENCE MEMBER,
9 havi ng been duly sworn
10 testified as foll ows:
11
12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Coul d you tell us --
13 I nvestigator Blacknore, could you tell us why we're
14 her e?
15 | NVESTI GATOR BLACKMORE: | nvesti gat or
16 Bl acknore, for the record.
17 Appl i cant was denied due to failure to
18 di scl ose and illegal use or possession of a
19 danger ous weapon. In 2011 -- sorry, the reason for
20 denial is in 2016, assault with a deadly weapon. He
21 did five years' probation, 364 days in jail.
22 Applicant did not disclose arrest.
23 Concurrent with that arrest, there was
24 al so an assault with intent to rape. That was |ater
25 di sm ssed.
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1 And then he was -- another 2016 i nci dent
2 I n Novenber, assault with a deadly weapon. There's
3 no disposition |isted on the fingerprints.
4 Applicant did not disclose.
5 And then he has a 2011 contenpt of court
6 that was | ater dism ssed. Applicant did not
7 di scl ose.
8 He was nade provisional, but he was not
9 added on to any conpany roster and he w shes to
10 appeal .
11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.
12 Sir, can | ask now, do you have a weapon?
13 MR HARRIS: No. | do not. 2016 it
14 was - -
15 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  No, sir, |I'm asking,
16 do you have a weapon right now?
17 MR HARRIS: OCh, no. | do not.
18 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.
19 Board, are there any questions for
20 M. Huerta?
21 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezi ck.
22 M. Huerta, why did you not disclose your
23 crimnal history?
24 MR HUERTA: | wasn't aware that for
25 Nevada we were supposed to do fromthe May ' 18 and
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1 above. | was -- California, where it's ten years

2 within the 10-year peri od.

3 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: It clearly states on
4 t he Nevada application that you have to disclose al
5 crimnal history.

6 MR. HUERTA: | apologize. | did not see
7 t hat .

8 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Any further

9 questions for M. Huerta?

10 Sir, can | ask, you're in a uniform now.
11 Are you working for a security conpany?

12 MR. HUERTA: Correct.

13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You're working for a
14 security conpany in Nevada?

15 MR. HUERTA: In California. In

16 Cal i f orni a.

17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. In California.
18 And you just cane over today for your appointnent?
19 MR. HUERTA: Yes. | just got off work.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Got you
21 Any further questions? Hearing there are
22 no further questions, I'll entertain a notion.
23 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezick.
24 | nmove we uphold the denial based on
25 nondi scl osure of crimnal history.
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BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber

Cortez. 1'll second that notion.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
have a second. All in favor say aye.

(Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

MADAM CHAIR NI XON: Sir, |like you heard ne
expl ain before to the other gentlenen, if you would
like to apply in a year they do have your crim nal
history. The office will help you fill out your
application. But you will have to wait one year.

MR HUERTA: Thank you.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank vyou.

Agenda Item No. 60, Juan Matthews.

MR. MATTHEWS: Good norning. How are you
guys doi ng?

BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK: Have you been sworn

in? He's got to be sworn in, also.

AUDI ENCE MEMBER,
havi ng been duly sworn

testified as fol | ows:

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: I nvesti gat or
Bl acknore, why are we here for M. Matthews?
| NVESTI GATOR BLACKMORE: | nvesti gat or
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Bl acknore, for the record.

He was denied due to failure to disclose,
as well as habits. For his first arrest, it was
2016. DU al cohol, caused bodily injury, five years
probation and 164 days in jail.

Second arrest was in 2014. There's three
charges. Charge one is wllful cruelty to child.
Charge two is assault with a deadly weapon. Third
charge is false inprisonnent.

For the first charge he did three years
probation and 60 days in jail. And charge two and
three just listed probation or jail.

2014 there was obstruction, public
officer. Three years probation and ten days in
jail.

In 2010 he did have another DU, five
years probation and 185 days in jail.

As well as a 2007 DU, three years
probation and 30 days in jail.

Applicant did not disclose his arrest.
There is page 2 and 3, as well as an Excel of
addi tional arrests.

He was nade provisional, but he was not
added to a conpany roster.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Board, any questions
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1 for M. Matthews?

2 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This i s Bezick.

3 Again, M. Mtthews, why did you fail to
4 di scl ose any of your arrests?

5 MR MATTHEWS: Yeah, | think | can see on
6 the -- on the convictions that there's a pattern

7 there. 1t's all behind alcohol, if you guys haven't
8 not i ced.

9 And two years ago | straightened up ny

10 life with rehab. | got paperwork for that. | got
11 two cases of previous DUs where | lost ny dad. |
12 went heavy on the bottle. Al nost |ost everything.
13 |"ma PPO operator in California. So |
14 switched up ny life. The Gam ng Board gave ne ny
15 gamng card. | got ny California guard card.

16 And the reason | did not, | was rushing
17 the application and | did see it, disclose all, but
18 you got a totally different -- California. |

19 realize that now It was an honest m stake on ny
20 part. It seens like I'"'mlying, sonething to hide.
21 |*ve got nothing to hide. | ain't got no guilt.
22 Al that's in nmy past. And I'm an
23 outstanding citizen in South Lake Tahoe. Got a
24 great relationship with PD, the sheriffs, the chief
25 of police.
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1 We do have the ability -- and the only

2 reason I'mtrying to get ny guard card for Nevada is

3 because there's another conpany that gots its PPO

4 out here. And we're a snmall conpany, that we

5 conbi ned together and we do contract out there in

6 Stateline, Nevada where | can't do business at. So

7 we go under his PPO and do -- conduct business.

8 Wthout this and -- it's going to be tough.

9 | bought a house in Garnerville, Nevada.
10 So | was trying to get ny PPO out here so | can --
11 busi ness out here. |I'min comunity out there. |
12 tal k to kids about al cohol addiction.

13 Gbvi ously, my past don't | ook good and
14 seens like | lied to you guys. But | truly -- |

15 didn't. Those -- California, you don't even have to
16 put arrest record on there. They just go off the
17 FBI and background checks. And |'moff probation
18 on -- in Nevada |'moff probation as of February.
19 That's why | sent the appeal. [|'moff probation
20 fromthis year. | have conpletion of the rehab.

21 And for California, I'mon court informa
22 probation for five years because of the recent DUl .
23 But | can get that off ny record in -- hopefully
24 within two years. | paid all the fines and

25 everyt hi ng.
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1 That's why I"'mhere. And I'mtrying to
2 better my life for my son. | got a nine year old.
3 And it was all behind al cohol, but I'm an
4 outstanding citizen -- community, and | would | ove
5 to do business in Nevada.
6 If | have to stay with ny buddy in
7 California | wll. You guys are way tougher than
8 California. | respect that. | learned a |lot, even
9 comng to this appeal. So, thank you.
10 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you.
11 Board, any further questions? Hearing
12 there are no further questions, |I'll entertain a
13 nmot i on.
14 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  This is Bezick.
15 | nove that we uphold the denial based on
16 failure to disclose crimnal history.
17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ckay. W have a
18 notion. Do we have a second?
19 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
21 have a second. All in favor say aye.
22 (Al'l present Board nenbers voted aye.)
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Motion passes.
24 Sir, appreciate everything that you're
25 trying to do. But | would state to you that you
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1 have all the crimnal history nowlisted. The
2 office wll help you when you fill out the
3 application again. You do have the opportunity to
4 do it in one year.
5 MR MATTHEWS: Ckay. | was told -- yeah.
6 | was told by the -- just a quick question. | was
7 told by -- I would never have appealed it if I -- it
8 cost ne, like, three nonths now. | thought you went
9 case by case. |Is there just a standard, if you
10 don't -- so that's the bottomline. | got to wait a
11 year to reapply, right?
12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Yes, sir.
13 MR. MATTHEWS: For the PPOto get a
14 busi ness license out here, is that the sane thing,
15 or | got to be off California probation?
16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You have to be off
17 probation, for sure.
18 MR. MATTHEWS: California, okay. Al
19 right.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you. Good | uck
21 to you.
22 MR. MATTHEWS: Yeah. That was a big
23 m stake. Going to cost nme a | ot of noney, but
24 | esson | earned. Keep it noving.
25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Agenda Item No. 63,
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1 t hey have wi t hdrawn.

2 Agenda |tem No. 64, Ernestine Bowdry?

3 Sir, what agenda itemare you?

4 MR DAVIS: Ma' anf

5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  What's your nane, sir?
6 MR DAVIS: Is WIbert Davis.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: 74.

8 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Wiy don't you

9

come on down, sir, and we'll see.
10 Just to confirm sir, you' ve been sworn
11 i n?
12 MR. DAVIS: Yes, ma'am
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay, thank you.
14 | nvestigator Manzo, could you tell us why
15 we're here for M. Davis?
16 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO: M. Davis was
17 deni ed because of undiscl osed weapon conviction from
18 1992 in Nevada for carrying a conceal ed weapon.
19 He di scl osed his ol der donestic battery
20 and viol ence arrest, but did not disclose his nost
21 recent arrest from 2021 in Nevada that was for
22 donestic battery with use of deadly weapon. It was
23 di sm ssed.
24 And then he -- or the other arrests that
25 were di scl osed were 2004 from California,
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1 m sdeneanor inflict corporal injury to spouse or

2 cohabi t ant .

3 A 2002 arrest from Nevada for domestic

4 battery.

5 And a 1996 arrest fromCalifornia for --
6 THE REPORTER  For?

7 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO: 1996 arrest
8 fromCalifornia for inflict corporal injury to

9 spouse or cohabitant.

10 Agai n, he disclosed the three ol der

11 m sdeneanor arrests, but not the 1992 m sdeneanor
12 carry conceal ed weapon or the recent 2021 fel ony
13 t hat was di sm ssed.

14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.

15 Board, any questions for M. Davis?

16 Sorry, senior nonent.

17 Sir, why did you fail to |let us know about
18 your nost recent arrest?

19 MR DAVIS: Well, ny nost recent arrest?
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Yes. |n 2021.

21 MR DAVIS. In 20- -- | -- | thought you
22 tal ki ng about with --

23 THE REPORTER W th what ?

24 THE WTNESS: Wth ny ex, Rhonda?

25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: It says donestic
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battery, use of a deadly weapon.
MR DAVIS: Oh, no. That was threw out of
court because she had lied. | did not hit her with

the car. And then '92, | think, about the conceal ed

1
2
3
4
5 weapon? \Wat happened, | got robbed. And | went
6 back (indiscernible) to get ny noney.

7 THE REPORTER:  You went back where?

8 MR DAVIS: -- Englestad. D turn into

9 Engl estad, up Lake Mead. | was in that area. | was
10 young. | went back to get ny noney. And on the way
11 back, | see a lady I know by the name of Ms. Liddy
12 (ph). An old lady I worked with at Landmark years
13 ago. And ne and her talk. And then we got talking.
14 | went to wal k back to the house. Because, |iKke,

15 forget it. It ain't worth it. And then that's when
16 | ran into the police. And | did have a conceal ed
17 weapon. So | surrendered the gun. And north -- |
18 tal ked to -- not the public defender, but the other

19 guy, the -- and ne and himtalk. This is ny first

20 time --

21 THE REPORTER  First tinme?

22 MR DAVIS: First time being in that --
23 never had a conceal ed weapon. That was ny first
24 I nci dent .

25 MADAM CHAIR NIl XON:  Sir, so the question
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1 Is -- the question is, on the application it asks
2 you to tell us about all that, right?
3 MR DAVIS: Right.
4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You didn't put it on
5 your application.
6 MR DAVIS: | didn't put the '92 on the
7 application because | thought it was threw out. |
8 never heard it. | never cane back up on ne.
9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  But the application
10 says you have --
11 MR DAVIS: About the paper, the cleaners.
12 | went -- | didn't know that that was on ne at the
13 time until | talked to that lady. Then I went and |
14 found out at the sane tine it was a woman. So |
15 went down and turned nyself in and found out what
16 was going on. That's when | knew that was on there.
17 And that's when that got threwout. | really didn't
18 know t hat none of that was on ne.
19 And then '92, they had threw that out. In
20 court, to ny know edge, fromthe waving the gun. So
21 | really didn't know until | appear for this card
22 that this was even on there.
23 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, did | understand,
24 were any of these discl osed?
25 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO.  Yes. He
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di scl osed three: 2004, 2002, and 1996, which were

all for either, like, donmestic battery rel ated.

The ones that were not disclosed was the
ol dest, which was the 1992 m sdeneanor carry
conceal ed weapon. And then the npobst recent one,
whi ch was the 2021 battery -- donestic battery with
deadl y weapon, which was di sm ssed.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Got it.

Any further questions fromthe Board?
Hearing there are no further questions, I'l|
entertain a notion.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer.

Motion to uphold the denial of WI bert
Davis's card, fail to disclose.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. W have a
notion. Do we have a second?

BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. So we have a
notion, we have a second. Al in favor say aye.

(Al'l present Board nenbers voted aye.)

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, now you have the
paperwor k that says what you' ve been arrested for
and convicted of, okay? |In one year you can cone
back and reapply. Wrk with the office. They'll
hel p you wth that paperwork, okay?
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1 MR DAVIS: (Go where?
2 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  Go to the office, the
3 PILB of fice.
4 MR DAVIS: But that's in a year.
5 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  That's in a year. And
6 they' Il help you work through this, okay?
7 MR DAVIS: Could | ask a question?
8 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Sure.
9 MR DAVIS: Is that because |I didn't know
10 that that was on ne?
11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Yes.
12 MR DAVIS: kay. Thank you.
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You' re wel cone, thank
14 you.
15 So the others are supposed to cone in at
16 1:30? So we're on recess until 1:30.
17 (OFf record.)
18 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Everybody's ready?
19 W' || go ahead and start the next session.
20 This was the -- we'll close out the 12:30
21 session. W had trailed Agenda Item No. 53, Chantia
22 Reynol ds? No? Gkay. Seeing that she's not here in
23 t he audi ence, she was schedul ed to be here at
24 12:30 -- so, sorry, 53, Chantia Reynolds is not
25 here.
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['ll entertain a notion.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
Cortez, notioning that we uphold the denial for
Chantia Reynolds, Item No. 53, for the no call, no
show. It is now 1:30 p. m

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a nmotion. Do
we have a second?

BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK: Bezi ck seconds.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
have a second. All in favor say eye.

(Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Moti on passes.

Now we' re starting with Agenda No. 63; is
that correct? O 64? 64. Ernestine Bowdry.

Actual ly, you know what? For everyone
that just cane into the audience, could you please

stand and get sworn in by counsel Harris.

AUDI ENCE MEMBERS,
havi ng been duly sworn

testified as fol | ows:

THE COURT: Was there anybody up north,
M. Bezick?
BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK: Nobody up north.
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1 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay.
2 Agenda Item No. 64, Ernestine Bowdry.
3 | nvesti gate Cuevas, could you please tel
4 us why we're here for Ms. Bowdry?
5 M5. BOADRY: Bowdry, bow.
6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Bowdry?
7 M5. BOADRY: Yes, mm'am
8 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO. | nvesti gator
9 Cuevas, for the record.
10 Ms. Bowdry was denied her disclosed fel ony
11 conviction from 2017 out of Texas for theft greater
12 than or equal to 2,500 | ess than 30, 000.
13 She disclosed all arrests, including
14 anot her felony from Texas for forgery of financi al
15 instrument, also from 2017. Those did conbine
16 t oget her, and she did do concurrent sentences on
17 t hose.
18 She al so has a 2011 arrest from Texas for
19 m sdenmeanor theft.
20 2011 arrest from Texas for m sdeneanor
21 assault, cause bodily injury to famly nenber.
22 Again, she did disclose all arrests, was
23 not made provisional, and wi shes to appeal.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Board, any questions
25 for Ms. Bowdry? Hearing there's no questions, |'l
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Cortez,

noti on.

entertain a notion.
notioning to grant Ms. Bowdry's appeal for

the work card based on full disclosure, tine and

1
2
3
4
5 di st ance.
6
7 Do we have a second?
8
9

10 have a second. All in favor say aye.

11 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, notion passes.
13 The office will contact you wth next
14 steps, okay? Congratulations. Good |luck to you.
15 M5. BOWDRY: Thank you, so nuch

16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Agenda Item No. 65,

17 Hakeem Muhammad.

18 Good afternoon -- yeah, it's afternoon.

19 | nvestigator Cuevas, could you tell us why we're

20 her e?

21 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO  Yes.

22 M. Mihammad is com ng back. He was originally seen

23 and deni ed by the Board Decenber 15th of 2022. He
24 was denied for failure to disclose. He has

25 reapplied and has disclosed all arrests, including a
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BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menmber

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: G onauer, second.
MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  We have a notion, we
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1 1986 felony conviction from California for robbery,
2 whi ch was anended to possession of controlled

3 subst ance.

4 1993 felony conviction fromCalifornia for
5 possess driver's |license to conmt forgery.

6 2004 felony fromCalifornia, and that is

7 for corporal injury to spouse or cohabitant.

8 2005 California conviction for possession
9 of controlled substance, also a felony.

10 And a m sdeneanor from 1987 from Hawai

11 for assault and harassnent.

12 Again he's reapplying. He disclosed al

13 arrests and wi shes to appeal.

14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Thank you, very
15 much.

16 Board, any questions for M. Mihammad?

17 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is G onauer.
18 Good afternoon, M. Mihammad.

19 MR MUHAMVAD: Good afternoon, sir.
20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I f you get
21 approved with a card, what do you plan on doing with
22 it.
23 MR MUHAMMVAD: | continue to work as a
24 security job for Allied. Transferred from
25 California to Nevada for Allied. And Nevada,

www.|exitaslegal .com EkE X I TA S 702-476-4500



Board Meeting In re: Private Investigators Licensing Board Meeting

Page 177
1 | earned have its own different, separate |aws for
2 obtaining a guard card. And that's why |I'm here.
3 To conti nue.
4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  \Where are you
5 enpl oyed now?
6 MR MUHAMVAD: |'m enployed with Gol den
7 Entertainnent. And they allowed nme to get a gam ng
8 card, which | got a | ead when | was here | ast year
9 that | can do that. So | did do that. And now I
10 work in the vault. I'ma utility vault clerk. |
11 verify mllions of dollars a day that's com ng in.
12 And really appreciate that opportunity.
13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: | hate to nmention
15 this, but do | see, are you a Marine, sir?
16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Senper Fi.
17 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: G ve himthat.
18 Are there any further questions for the
19 Board? Wth no questions, I'l|l entertain a notion.
20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is G onauer.
21 Make a notion to grant the appeal Hakeem
22 Muhammad, time and di stance.
23 MR MUHAMVAD: Thank you, sir.
24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
25 Cortez.
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1 |'"'malso going to second the notion.

2 Thank you for doing exactly what you were asked to
3 do and disclose all of your convictions.

4 MR. MUHAMVAD: Thank you, na'am

5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Com ng back and
6 doing everything is great.

7 MR. MUHAMVAD: Thank you. | appreciate
8 it.

9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
10 have a second. All in favor say aye.

11 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: So, notion passes.
13 Congratul ati ons. Good |luck to you.

14 MR. MUHAMVAD. Thank you, Board. |

15 appreciate it.

16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Thank you for your
17 service, sir.

18 MR. MUHAMVAD: Thank you.

19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  The office w |
20 contact you with next steps, sir. Don forget your
21 hat .
22 MR. MUHAMVAD: Thank you.
23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Cal |l ed a cover.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Agenda Item No. 66,
25 Jaj uan Rogers?

www.|exitaslegal .com EkE X I TA S 702-476-4500



Board Meeting In re: Private Investigators Licensing Board Meeting

Page 179
1 Good afternoon.
2 MR. RODGERS: Hell o.
3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: I nvestigator Cuevas,
4 could you tell us why we're here for M. Rodgers?
5 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO  Yes.
6 M. Rodgers was denied for his disclosed
7 weapon conviction from 2021 out of California. It
8 was a m sdeneanor carry conceal ed weapon and possess
9 controll ed substance without valid prescription. He
10 was sentenced to one year probation.
11 The applicant was previously denied by the
12 Board on Septenber 13, 2022. He is reapplying, has
13 di scl osed all arrests, and wi shes to appeal .
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Board, any
15 guestions for M. Rodgers? Hearing there are no
16 questions, I'll entertain a notion.
17 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK: This is Bezick.
18 | nove we grant the work card for
19 M. Rogers based on the fact he revealed his full
20 crimnal history.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a
22 notion. Do we have a second?
23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a
25 notion, we have a second. All in favor say aye.
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1 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you, very nuch,
3 for comng in and taking care of what we asked you
4 to do. Your work card will be processed, and the

5 office will contact you with next steps.

6 MR. RODGERS: Al right. Thank you.

7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Agenda Item No. 67,

8 Matt hew Weston. Trail that.

9 Agenda Item No. 68, Tiffany Scott.

10 Agenda Item No. 69, Kinyatte Thurston.

11 MR, THURSTON:. Yes, nmm'am

12 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Good afternoon, sir.
13 MR THURSTON. Good afternoon.

14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: I nvesti gator Cuevas,
15 could you tell us why we're here?

16 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO  Yes.

17 M. Thurston was denied for his felony

18 conviction that he did not disclose from 1998 out of
19 California for conspire to commt robbery; possess a
20 firearmby felon; and possess, manufacture, or sel
21 weapon. He was sentenced to 19 years in prison.
22 He al so has a 1992 -- a felony from
23 California for petty theft with prior, where he was
24 sentenced to three years prison and a fine.
25 He was made provisional and was added to
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conpany roster for Custom Security Guard & Patrol,

LLC. And he wi shes to appeal.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Board, any
questions for M. Thurston?

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good aft ernoon,

M. Thurston.

MR, THURSTON: CGood afternoon, sir.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Can you tell ne
why you di d not disclose your arrest record?

MR. THURSTON: | just noved out here about
2019 from California. And they have tooken (sic) ny
record -- ny record was sealed a while back, so |
never disclose anything because | thought | was
strai ght because | was working out at Sunset ParKk.
| been working out there since | been out here. So
| didn't know to put it down.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Did you fill out
t he application yourself?

MR. THURSTON:  Yes.

BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Did you see on the
one page where it had a big red stop sign that tells
you to list all arrests?

MR THURSTON: No, | didn't, sir. That's
why | went back and got the paperwork and cane back

in to showthat | had all these convictions.
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1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Thank you

2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any further questions
3 for the Board?

4 What do you do now?

5 MR THURSTON: | work for Heal thcare

6 Service Goup in Horizon Hospital. | work with the
7 conval escent homes. And | was -- the job, when |

8 had this job as well, they the one told ne | had a
9 green dot by ny nane and | was wonderi ng why.

10 Because | don't do anything no nore. | really out
11 of the way for it. That's why | noved to Vegas. To
12 | eave ny past behi nd.

13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Got you. Thank you.
14 If there's no further questions for the
15 Board, I'll entertain a notion.

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is G onauer.
17 Make a notion to deny the appeal based on
18 fail to disclose.

19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  We have a notion. Do
20 we have a second?
21 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.
22 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
23 have a second. All in favor say aye.
24 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Moti on passes.
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1 So, unfortunately, because you didn't
2 di scl ose we have to remain consistent. You know,
3 we've had quite a few people who have -- you know,
4 it's been a long tinme ago, it's unfortunate.
5 Because if it was just on your application it
6 probably woul dn't be an issue.
7 MR THURSTON: But excuse ne, can | say
8 one thing?
9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Sure.
10 MR, THURSTON. Because the guy | had --
11 had tal ked to the person that gave ne the card.
12 Soneone gave ne a call and asked ne a question. |
13 told themyes, and they was, |ike, okay. And they
14 had me working -- | was working the job for so
15 many -- | nean, for so many nonths. So |'mjust
16 trying to figure out -- | said yes because | didn't
17 see -- like | said, | don't even think | wote
18 anyt hi ng down.
19 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: It would cone up on
20 your fingerprints, sir. So when they ran your
21 fingerprints, that's when they found it.
22 | s that correct?
23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Here's the other
24 I ssue, sir. You failed to disclose your
25 convictions. And here on page 5 of the
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1 application -- hang on one second. On page 5 of the
2 application, it actually -- this is the red stop

3 sign that we're tal king about.

4 MR THURSTON. | didn't --

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Right. So

6 unfortunately, you skipped page 5. And on page 6,

7 that -- that's where it goes intoit. [It's why we
8 tell applicants to go nice and slow. That page that
9 | just showed you, it's literally one full page of
10 it. So you can't get past it wthout |looking at it.
11 And it lists clearly, list all charges, even if

12 di sm ssed, expunged, deni ed, whatever the case nmay
13 be. It's a technicality.

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Just a comment,

15 Sir

16 This is G onauer.

17 W woul d rather you be working and have a
18 work card. However, as we told so many tines

19 previously, that if you don't follow rules and
20 di scl ose your arrest, we can't nmake an excepti on.
21 MR THURSTON: This -- this --
22 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Thank you.
23 MR. THURSTON. Ckay. | understand. What
24 l"m-- what I'mtrying to explain is this goes
25 like -- when | noved here, | didn't know -- because,
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1 like, out here I'"'mfrom it's, |ike, seven years
2 prior to that.
3 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: Sir --
4 MR THURSTON: | didn't see that --
5 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: Sir, | understand. |
6 understand. And you not seeing it is, again, like
7 you not understanding the |aw and breaking it,
8 right? You didn't break the law, but you still have
9 to understand it when you're in a different state,
10 right? So unfortunately, at this point we can't
11 make any ot her deci sion.
12 MR. THURSTON: Yes, ma'am | understand.
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  But what | would tell
14 you, just |like you saw sonme ot her people cone up
15 earlier. The gentleman was a Marine. He served his
16 country proudly. He nade sonme m stakes and he ended

17 up not being able to get his guard card the first

18 time, or his work card. He cane back, you know?

19 And when you conme back, make sure you work with the
20 office. They'll help you fill out your application.
21 They' |l help you with your arrests if there's

22 anything, and then you can cone back and see us.
23 MR. THURSTON. That's what happened. The
24 | ady at the office helped nme fill the application

25 out. But | didn't see that part, so she's, like, do
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this and | did that. And that's what | did. And |

came and then | did everything.
MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Sir, | understand.
But at the end of the day, your fingerprints is what

did not. So that's the bottomline, okay?

1

2

3

4

5 di scl osed or let us know that you had arrests. You
6

7 Pl ease feel free to cone back and see us
8

9

in one year. W would -- we |love to see people cone
back.

10 MR. THURSTON: Al l right.

11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Thank you. Good | uck

12 to you, sir.

13 Agenda Item No. 70, Patrick Sweeney.

14 Agenda Item No. 71, Ebony Danf ord.

15 Ma' am were you here earlier when they

16 swore everybody in?

17 M5. DANFORD:  No.

18 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Was anybody el se not

19 here? Does anybody el se need to be sworn in?

20 Counsel Harris will swear you in.

21

22 EBONY DANFORD,

23 havi ng been duly sworn

24 was exam ned and testified as foll ows:

25
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1 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: I nvestigator Cuevas,

2 could you tell us why we're here for Ms. Danford?

3 | NVESTI GATOR CUEVAS MANZO.  Ms. Danford

4 was denied for her listed felony conviction from

5 1993 from New Jersey for conspiracy with intent to

6 distribute. She was sentenced to one year probation
7 and conmunity service.

8 She al so has a 1995 felony from Nevada for
9 fugitive fromjustice which was di sm ssed, which was
10 in correlation to the 1993 from New Jersey.

11 She does have a m sdeneanor from 2011 from
12 Nevada for possession of drug not introduced into

13 conmer ce, where she was sentenced to comunity

14 servi ce and drug counseling.

15 She did disclose all arrests, was aware

16 she'd be denied, and is now here to appeal.

17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Board, any questions
18 for Ms. Danford? Hearing there are no questions,

19 "1l entertain a notion.
20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
21 Cortez.
22 | amgoing to notion to grant
23 Ms. Danford's appeal based on full disclosure, tine
24 and di st ance.
25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  We have a notion. Do
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1 we have a second?

2 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.

3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: We have a notion, we
4 have a second. All in favor say aye.

5 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, the notion passes.
7 You w Il get your work card. The office wll cal

8 you W th next steps, okay?

9 M5. DANFORD: Thank you.

10 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you. Good | uck
11 to you.

12 Agenda Item No. 72, Derrick D shnon.

13 Trail that.

14 Agenda Item No. 74 W/ bert Davis.

15 Agenda Item No. 75, Trevas D xon.

16 Agenda Item No. 76, Gegory Carm chael .

17 Good afternoon.

18 MR. CARM CHAEL: Good afternoon.

19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: | nvesti gat or
20 Bl acknore, could you tell us about M. Carm chael
21 and why we're here?
22 THE WTNESS: Yes. |Investigator
23 Bl acknore, for the record.
24 Appl i cant was deni ed due to having a
25 felony conviction. | have himas he didn't disclose

www.|exitaslegal .com EkE X I TA S 702-476-4500



Board Meeting In re: Private Investigators Licensing Board Meeting

Page 189
1 as well, soit's a 2010, it's out of New York. It's
2 contenpt, first degree, violate order of protection.
3 He did five years' probation and then six nonth
4 protection order termfor that. Applicant did not
5 di scl ose.
6 There was a 2014 di sorderly conduct, no
7 di sposition listed. Applicant did not disclose.
8 He has a 2011 crimnal contenpt, no
9 di sposition was listed. Applicant did not disclose.
10 Also in 2011 he also had a crimna
11 contenpt, first degree, five years probation.
12 As well as a 2010 stal king, trespass, or
13 aggravated harassnment. This was in conjunction with
14 that 2010 arrest. It was not disclosed.
15 He was made provisional, but he was not
16 added to any roster. Applicant w shes to appeal.
17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ckay. Board, any
18 questions for M. Carm chael ?
19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
20 Cortez.
21 M. Carm chael, why did you fail to report
22 any convictions?
23 MR. CARM CHAEL: Just sinply because |I had
24 a guard card in California and they didn't nmake ne
25 di scl ose it because of the anmount of tine.
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1 | don't want to nmake it sound like |I don't
2 t ake accountability for ny actions, because | do.

3 And | mssed ny job and | thought that this period
4 of tinme would have cleared this. But unfortunately
5 it hasn't. | amwrking wwth an attorney to get it
6 di scl osed.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: | do want to nake

8 sure that you understand that you do need to

9 di sclose it. Even though you have | egal counsel,

10 the application clearly states you have to discl ose
11 all convictions, no matter what the disposition or
12 the status of the actual case is.

13 MR CARM CHAEL: | understand that now.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: (kay, all right.

15 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any further questions
16 for M. Carmchael? Hearing there are no further

17 questions, I'll entertain a notion.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
19 Cortez notioning to uphold the denial based on no
20 di scl osure of crimnal history.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a
22 notion. Do we have a second?
23 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a notion, we
25 have a second. All in favor say aye.
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1 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, the notion passes.
3 You can cone back and see us in one year. The

4 office wll help you with your application and your
5 i nformation. Thank you.

6 Agenda Item No. 77, David Cox.

7 Agenda Item No. 78, Destiny Harris.

8 Sir, what's your nane.

9 MR THOMAS: Telvin Thomas.

10 DAG HARRI S: Last one.

11 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  Sir, why don't you

12 j ust come on up.

13 MR THOVAS: In all fairness, | did Iist
14 in my docunents part of ny petition, | have to say
15 as soon as got so many tines, | thought | did Iist
16 it this tine.

17 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So | nvesti gat or

18 Swarthout, tell us why we're here for M. Thonas.

19 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT:  The appl i cant was
20 previously denied for a felony conviction before the
21 Board at the -- and it was upheld at the 12-8-2020
22 Board neeting.
23 The applicant has had all of his arrest
24 history in Nevada seal ed and did provide the court
25 docunents for it. The applicant's fingerprints did
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1 cone back positive. Nothing listed in Nevada, but

2 did [ist a May 29, 2021 arrest out of Arizona for

3 di sorderly conduct, disorderly conduct fighting,

4 bot h were di sm ssed.

5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  This was out of

6 Ari zona?

7 | NVESTI GATOR SWARTHOUT: That is correct.
8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Madam Chair, may |

9 ask a question?

10 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Any questions for the
11 Boar d?

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
13 Cortez.

14 How are you doing, M. Thonmas?

15 MR THOVAS. How s it going?

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Talk to ne -- you
17 answered -- there was a question on the application
18 in which it asks about investigation, discipline,

19 deni al of the Board, Board whatnot.
20 You indicated your response was fal se
21 I nprisonnment by police genocide. Can you explain
22 that to nme?
23 MR THOVAS:. | don't renmenber that part of
24 t he application.
25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So, page -- there's
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1 a question, and then -- it's actually No. 3. It
2 asks if you've ever been investigated, disciplined,
3 or denied by a Board -- by this Board or in any
4 ot her state. Your response was false inprisonnent
5 by police genocide.
6 MR THOVAS. Oh, they -- | got 46 (ph)
7 false inprisonnent. | just be wal king down the
8 street --
9 THE REPORTER: Excuse ne. Can you sl ow
10 down, please, sir?
11 MR. THOVAS:. Just get arrested and just
12 be, like, I"'mright across the street fromny house.
13 Just -- I'mnot doing anything. Just -- that's
14 that. That was the life | was living. Just
15 literally going to jail just for wal king out ny
16 door. No cause. Cops just feel like they had a
17 reliable arrest and it was just really harassnent.
18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Ckay. Talk --
19 MR THOVAS: | wasn't fromthis city. |
20 wasn't born in this city.
21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood. So talk
22 to ne about the inpersonation of a public officer
23 back in 2022.
24 MR THOVAS. Well, | was at a job site and
25 | was contracted to be there. And they didn't want
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1 to pay ne. So they decided to call the police and
2 say | was trespassing. And say that | pulled a

3 badge on them And | was, like, well, you guys cal
4 the police for no reason. And since | don't own a
5 badge, tell themit's not a real badge. They be,

6 i ke, whatever. They, like, we're calling the

7 police. Get off our job site. Really weird right
8 Now.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So you did pull out
10 a badge.

11 MR THOMAS: | didn't badge them though.
12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: WAs a badge

13 present ed?

14 MR. THOVAS:. | had a badge, yes.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: On your person --
16 MR THOVAS:. It was ny own badge. It was
17 right after Halloween tine.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: That was a badge
19 t hat that conpany gave to you, or it was just a
20 badge - -
21 MR THOVAS: No, it was mne. |
22 personal |y bought that. | was contracting nmy own
23 jobs. | was trying to figure out how to do ny own
24 business in nmy own city with nmy owmn contracts. But
25 | was working for a conpany. And the conpany | ust
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went crazy on ne because they didn't want to pay.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: That conpany was in
what state?

MR. THOVAS: It was Peopl eReady on Main
Street.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So here in Nevada.

MR. THOVAS: Yeah, it's a tenp agency.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Here in Nevada, a
conpany gave you what appears to be a | aw
enf orcenent | ooki ng badge.

MR. THOMVAS: It was m ne.

MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  No --

MR THOVAS: | ordered it off of Wsh.

THE REPORTER  Excuse ne.

MR. THOMVAS: Yeah, because | had
harassnment fromthe police. The police was
literally --

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Hang on, hang on.

MR THOVAS: -- violate the law for no
reason.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You purchased your
own personal badge.

MR. THOVAS: Yes.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: That's not

trespassing. Wwen | -- when you pull out a badge,
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you are now acting as if you have sone kind of |aw

enforcenent or security kind of status.
You just indicated that was your own

personal badge that you bought. Doesn't matter

I npersonating public official.
MR THOVAS: But | didn't do it, though.

1

2

3

4

5 where. That's where you got the charge of

6

7

8 That's what I"'mtelling you. They just want to nake
9

it up -- they wanted to nake up a story on ne.
10 That's --
11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Based off what you
12 just told nme, and having been --
13 MR THOVAS: |1'm --
14 THE REPORTER  Excuse ne.
15 MR. THOVAS:. -- badge.
16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Hang on, sir.
17 Based of f what you just told ne --
18 MR THOMAS: | can't survive.
19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Wuld you like nme to
20 finish or did you want to just continue speaking?
21 MR, THOVAS. Sorry.
22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Based off your
23 testi nony, you gave ne a visual of you did exactly
24 I npersonate a public officer. You took out a badge
25 that did not belong to any kind of |aw enforcenent
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agency. You purchased that separately.

So when you pull it out to any citizen,
they're going to assunme that you are enployed with a
| aw enforcenent agency. That, in fact, you were
not. So there is the inpersonation part.

Are we in agreenent with that part? |
understand you think that it was unfair. But |I'm
just making sure that we both understand what the
definitions are. That nake sense?

MR. THOVAS: No. Because |I don't think
you understand that it was not a real situation.

BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: (kay, under st ood.

MR. THOVAS:. You get what |'msaying? |'m

not -- I'mnot alleging to be a police officer or
anything of that nature. | was stating a principle
inm life at that tine. And that -- it's seal ed,

it's cleared, but | was not presenting nyself -- |
had no gun. | had no -- a police officer has a gun
to defend hisself (sic). That's why |I'm so scared
of them because they got guns. W got --

MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  Sir, real quick. This
isn't a court of law W --

MR. THOVAS: | understand. But that -- it
hurt --

THE REPORTER: Excuse ne --
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1 MR THOVAS. -- ny little sister's a

2 second |lieutenant and | woul d never try to be

3 sonet hing that woul d defamate (sic) her character.

4 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  Sir, at the end of the
5 day, we're just here to determ ne whether or not

6 we're going to authorize getting you a work card.

7 So at this point, are there any nore

8 questions for the Board? Hearing there are no

9 questions, |I'll entertain a notion.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
11 Cortez.

12 | amgoing to notion to uphold the denia
13 based off of tinme and di stance with recent contact
14 wth |aw enforcenent. W have a 2022 and 2021 and
15 2020.

16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a

17 notion. Do we have a second?

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.
19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. W have a
20 notion, we have a second. Al in favor say aye.
21 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)
22 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, two things.
23 One, you need a little tinme and di stance
24 bet ween the contact with you and the police. |I'm
25 sorry, but this not a conversation any nore.
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1 W are nore than willing to cone back and
2 reapply. But at the end of the day, for us, because
3 a security officer is someone who's uphol di ng
4 regul ati ons and sonetimes even |aws, and discipli ne,
5 we need to nake sure that you understand what that
6 neans.
7 And so at this point, | don't think any of
8 us have confidence that you do. W're not here
9 to -- you got your cases going on, that's sonething
10 conpletely different than what we're doing.
11 You have an opportunity to cone back in a
12 year. The office will help you. | think they did
13 this tinme, to help submt your application when you
14 cone before the Board again. Thank you, and good
15 | uck to you.
16 MR. THOVAS: \What (indiscernible) sucks.
17 MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  |I'm sorry?
18 MR. THOVAS. You got to know t he
19 definition of police officer. It's two definitions.
20 Peopl e never | ook at term nol ogi es.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Have a great day, sir.
22 MR. THOVAS: | don't need to pass the bar.
23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  There's a next group
25 com ng in.
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1 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADINO. I n 30

2 m nut es.

3 (OFf record.)

4 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Everybody, it's now

5 2:30, or 2:29, so we'll go ahead and get started.

6 We had a couple agenda itens that we

7 trailed the | ast session. Those were Agenda |Item

8 No. 67, Matthew Weston who is not in the audi ence.

9 68, Tiffany Scott, who is not in the

10 audi ence.

11 72, Derrick Dishnmon. Again, not in the
12 audi ence.

13 And then 75, Trevas Dixon. Trevas D xon,
14 again, not in the audience.

15 So at this time I'lIl take a notion on

16 t hose itens.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
18 Cortez notioning to uphold the denial for said

19 agenda itens based off no call, no show It is now
20 2:30 p.m, they were advised to be here at 1:30 p.m
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a
22 notion. Do we have a second?
23 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.
24 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. W have a
25 notion, we have a second. All in favor say aye.
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1 (Al'l present Board nenbers voted aye.)
2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Moti on passes.
3 The next Agenda Item was Agenda |tem
4 No. 77, David Cox. Are you here, sir?
) MR, COX: Yes.
6 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Have you been sworn
7 I n?
8 MR COX: No.
9
10 DAVI D COX,
11 havi ng been duly sworn
12 testified as foll ows:
13
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  This is No. 77.
15 | nvesti gat or Bl acknore, could you tell us
16 why we're here for M. Cox?
17 | NVESTI GATOR BLACKMORE:  Yes.
18 | nvesti gat or Bl acknore, for the record.
19 So M. Cox was denied due to failure to
20 di scl ose, as well as having a weapons convicti on.
21 It was in 2001 out of California.
22 Possessed, sale, switchblade knife. 12 nonths
23 probation and two days jail.
24 He al so has a 2011 m sdeneanor for DUl .
25 It was three years probation and 35 days' jail.
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1 And then in 2005 he had a reckl ess
2 negligent watercraft use. 18 nonths probation as
3 well as a fine was inposed. This was in conjunction
4 wth a DU, but the DU was di sm ssed.
5 He has a 1996 arrest for DU warrant.
6 That was di sm ssed.
7 As well as a 1994 donestic viol ence
8 conviction. 94 days suspended sentence, as well as
9 a $1, 000 fi ne.
10 Appl i cant was made provisional, but he was
11 never added to the roster, and he was -- wi shes to
12 appeal .
13 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. Board, any
14 questions for M. Cox?
15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
16 Cortez.
17 M. Cox, why did you fail to disclose your
18 convi ctions?
19 MR THOVAS: What do you nean?
20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: All of your crimna
21 history, they were needing -- they needed to be
22 di scl osed and you failed to disclose the majority of
23 t hem
24 MR COX: | didn't know howto do it. |
25 didn't know it really needed to be done until |
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1 started working for Allied.

2 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Do you know what

3 "di scl osed" nmeans?

4 MR COX: Not really.

5 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, on the application
6 for your license, you needed to put down all of your
7 arrests and convictions.

8 MR COX: kay.

9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  And you didn't do

10 t hat .

11 MR COX: Ckay.

12 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: So that's what we're
13 t al ki ng about when we say di scl osed.

14 MR COX: Ckay. | needed to provide that
15 to the DW basically?

16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: No, to the PILB

17 MR COX: kay.

18 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Ckay. And you didn't
19 do that. D d you see on the application where it
20 said stop, list all your arrests, convictions? You
21 didn't see that?
22 MR COX: | did not see that or | would
23 have filled it out.
24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: |1'm going to show
25 you, just so you know. In the event you do need to
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1 fill it out again -- you can stay right there. But
2 there is -- did you do it online or with the paper
3 packet ?

4 MR COX: | believe | didit on -- with

5 t he paper packet.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So, in that paper

7 packet, you're going to see this exact page, and

8 there's a big red stop sign. And in that stop sign,
9 underneath it says that you're going to be asked

10 about your arrest history, and you needed to |i st

11 all of it.

12 MR COX: kay.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Even --

14 MR COX: | don't have that on the record.
15 | don't know howto find it.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So, the good thing
17 is, it's all here for you. So wait for our

18 deci sion, and then we can give you further

19 i nformati on.
20 MR COX: Perfect. | thought that one
21 thing was -- relating to was the switchbl ade that |
22 had. And | don't own one, | never will, and |
23 didn't even know it was illegal. | nean, that was
24 23 years ago. So, anyways.
25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: It doesn't -- that's
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1 part of the problem

2 MR. COX: CGot you.

3 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  But the overall issue
4 Is that you didn't wite down all of the arrests

5 that you've had, the DU s and all of it.

6 MR COX: If | would have known to do that
7 | woul d have done it. And | will do it.

8 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, Board, are there
9

any other questions? Hearing there are no other

10 questions, |I'll entertain a notion.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board nenber
12 Cortez.

13 |"mgoing to notion that we uphold the

14 deni al based on no disclosure of your crimnal

15 hi story.

16 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: W have a nmotion. Do
17 we have a second?

18 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK: Bezi ck seconds.

19 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: We have a notion, we
20 have a second. All in favor say aye.

21 (Al present Board nenbers voted aye.)

22 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, unfortunately, at
23 this time we can't give you your work card.

24 But, sir, you know, you have all your

25 information now. The Board -- the |icensing Board
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1 can give you a copy of that. You can reapply in one
2 year. After that year, you can cone in and go

3 through this again. | knowit seens |like a |ong

4 tine --

5 MR COX: | nean, ne and ny girlfriend are
6 rai sing the grandkids. Financially, | need to work.
7 But -- and | worked for -- or Allied several events.
8 Even the F1 and it was awesone. But...

9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  What | would tell you,
10 this is advice we gave to another gentleman. |t

11 wor ked out well for him [Is you can go to the

12 Gam ng Board and get a card with them Mke sure

13 t hat you take your tinme, go through the application.
14 But it's different fromus, so you can work in a

15 casino or events with them And then that will get
16 you through until can you get a nore steady position
17 goi ng through with this process.

18 MR COX: | know Allied has all kinds of
19 work. | nmean, | work for Manpower and Hatfield
20 (ph), but they don't have nuch goi ng on.
21 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: Try to get your gam ng
22 card, going that route. But nmake sure you take tine
23 and go through the application --
24 MR COX: Wiere do | go for a gam ng card?
25 |'ve never done it, so | don't know.
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1 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NO  For the
2 gam ng card, you have to register with the Nevada
3 Gam ng Control Board. | believe you just go online
4 to their website for the --
5 MR COX: [|'lIl wite that down or [|'I]|
6 forget it.
7 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Thank you, very nuch,
8 sir. Again, we hope to see you in a year. Thank
9 you.
10 MR COX: Can | get a copy of that?
11 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You have to go when
12 they're open. So tonorrow or the next day.
13 | NVESTI GATOR BLACKMORE: | can e-mail you
14 what you need to request from Nevada DPS for that.
15 MR. COX: You called that what? The
16 Gam ng Boar d?
17 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR SALADI NO  Gami ng
18 Control Board. GCB.
19 MR. COX: You all have a great day.
20 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  You, too.
21 So, | guess we're going to wait until
22 2:45, give them 10 mnutes. And then if -- we're
23 wai ti ng on Agenda Item No. 78, Destiny Harris.
24 That's all.
25 (O f record.)
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1 MADAM CHAIR NI XON: It is now 2:45 and we
2 have one agenda itemleft. Agenda Item No. 78,
3 Destiny Harris.
4 There is no one in the audi ence down
5 sout h.
6 I's there anyone in the audi ence up north?
7 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:  No one in the
8 audi ence up north.
9 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Ckay. So that neans,
10 then, I think we have a couple of itens.
11 Did we ever do the trailed itens?
12 DAG HARRIS: Yes. All trailed itens
13 t hr ough 78.
14 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  So, then, I'Il take a
15 notion for Agenda Item No. 78.
16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Menber
17 Cortez notioning to uphold the denial based on no
18 call, no show, in addition to failure to disclose
19 any kind of crimnal history. And that would be for
20 Item No. 78, Destiny Harris. She was told to be
21 here at 2:30, it is now 2:46 p. m
22 MADAM CHAI R NI XON:  Okay. So we have a
23 notion. Do we have a second?
24 BOARD MEMBER BEZI CK:  Bezi ck seconds.
25 MADAM CHAI R NI XON: We have a notion, we
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have a second. All in favor say aye.

(Al'l present Board nenbers voted aye.)

MADAM CHAIR NI XON:  So we're at Agenda
Item No. 85, Board comment and future agenda itens
for possible action. Do we have any Board coment ?
Ckay. Seeing there's no Board conment.

Public comment? W don't have any public
comment so that nakes that kind of easy.

Next thing is to adjourn the neeting.
It's been a pleasure. Thanks for all your hard
wor k, and we'll see you next tinme. Thank you.

(Proceedi ngs concluded at 2:47 p.m)
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REPORTER S CERTI FI CATE.

STATE OF NEVADA)
) ss
COUNTY OF CLARK)

I, Tracy A. Manning, a duly comm ssi oned
Certified Court Reporter, Cark County, State of
Nevada, do hereby certify:

That | reported the taking of the proceedi ngs,
at the tine and pl ace af oresai d;

That | thereafter transcribed ny said shorthand
notes into typewiting and that the typewitten
transcript of said proceeding is a conplete, true
and accurate record of statenents provided by the
parties at said tine to the best of ny ability.

I further certify that | amnot a rel ative,
enpl oyee, or independent contractor of counsel of
any of the parties involved in said action; nor a
person financially interested in the action; nor do
| have any other relationship with any of the
parties or with counsel of any of the parties
involved in the action that nay reasonably cause ny
inmpartiality to be questi oned.

IN WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny hand
in the County of Cl ark, State of Nevada, this 27th
day of March 2024.

ﬁ&u&\ P\M\N§

Tracy A. Manni ng, CCR 785
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